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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
To Our Shareholders

We respectfully present our 2008 annual report herein.

Results & Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2008, revenue and loss attributable to
the equity holders of the Company were approximately HK$91.7 million and
approximately HK$33.2 million respectively. Loss per share was approximately
2.9 HK cents.

The Board does not recommend a dividend at this time. Consequently, no
dividend was proposed during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Business Review

With the initial sub-prime crisis in North America turning into a full-blown global
banking and securities implosion and loss of confidence, we have witnessed
the unprecedented effects of a financial tsunami on the equity capital markets
and global economy on a scale of unimaginable proportions. Continuous
deleveraging, significant numbers of investor redemptions and consequential
strains on investment funds’ need to divest have further exacerbated the
downward pressures on equity prices as the fund managers have tried to
balance their responsiveness to redemption requests and stability of their
investment portfolios. Thus higher volatility in global stock markets have been
unavoidable for the latter part of the year.

Earlier in the year, the PRC property market had been subjected to austerity
measures to cool the then euphoric sentiment but with the eruption of this
global financial tsunami, the Beijing Central Government acted quickly in
October 2008 to bolster confidence and certainty in the property sector so as to
have a positive influence on property buyers’ sentiment for the rest of 2008.

Property development in Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, remained our key focus
throughout the year. The Board remains confident that the Suzhou property
market, where currently most of our property development projects are situated,
will carry on performing strongly. Suzhou continues to rank highest in terms
of growth in gross domestic product (GDP) in Jiangsu Province and number
five nationally in 2008, growing by 13% year on year. Suzhou also ranked
second in terms of foreign direct investment, which also increased by 13% as
compared to 2007. Due to the continuous influx of capital into Suzhou, the city
continues to attract incoming skilled labour as well as middle management,
which is expected to be a key support factor on demand for housing. Adding
to the above is the proximity of Suzhou to Shanghai whereby high-speed train
services between the two cities now may involve only around 30 minutes travel
time. Price differentiation will continue to be an advantage for Suzhou to attract
Shanghai homebuyers for retirement and investment home purchases.

The Group continued with its development activities during the year, pushing
ahead with corporate, design and site formation preparations following on from
its land acquisition programme from 2007. More revenue contribution from
these sites are expected in 2009 and beyond.

Regarding the Group’s sales in 2008, the Central Government’s austerity
measures on real estate in the first three quarters had the inevitable dampening
impact on our property transaction volumes and pricing. However, the Group
has observed progressive improvements in the market sentiment since
November 2008 and both transaction volumes and pricing have picked up.
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In addition to our original signature residential projects, Suzhou Garden Villa,
Suzhou Garden Court, Suzhou Garden Place and Suzhou Garden Towers, in the
Suzhou New District, we have successfully established signature projects in
Wuzhong District, namely Wuzhong Garden Court, and are in process of further
delivering to the historical town of Guangfu attractive low-density townhouses
— Taihu Garden Court. The pre-sale of the first phase of Taihu Garden Court
was originally expected to be launched in 2008 and the delivery of completed
units in the same year. However, the exceptionally adverse weather in Suzhou
throughout 2008 hampered and affected the construction as well as the
delivery schedule. Completion of Taihu Garden Court first phase pre-sales units
have now been deferred to the first quarter of 2009 and delivery/handovers
expected to be in mid-2009.

Apart from these residential sites, the Group also owns a site for the
development of an office tower with retail facilities, located in the Economic
Development Zone of Wuzhong District.

Still in the greater Suzhou municipality of Jiangsu Province but further south
and also close to neighbouring Zhejiang Province is Wujiang City where the
Group secured a site of developable area of approximately 155,200 sq.m. The
site is situated on the eastern shore of the Long Zhong Lake of Shengze Town.
The Board believes this site will be a promising project as Shengze Town is a
thriving silk and textile trade and production centre in China.

Property investment in 2008 for the Group in Suzhou and Beijing continued
to provide stable revenue as well as cash inflow. In Suzhou, the two retail
properties, namely SGV Plaza and Garden Court Plaza, have continued to
achieve full occupancy. Residential units owned and leased out by the Group
also experienced an occupancy rate of around 64%. Valuation of the Group’s
investment properties has been conducted by an independent property valuer
as at 31 December 2008 and a negative fair value adjustment of approximately
HK$11.4 million (net of deferred taxation) was recorded.

In Beijing, the long awaited and subsequently hugely successful 2008 Summer
Olympic Games provided a memorable and historic backdrop to Beijing
Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.’s 2008 results from which the Group derives a
30.05% investment benefit. As previously announced by the Company, efforts
to convert this equity joint venture company into a joint stock company are still
being pursued with terms for the conversion still under negotiation and not yet
finalised.

For the medium to longer term, the Group’s minor investment in a residential
project in Jia Ding, Shanghai will be expecting an initial return in 2010.
Elsewhere, the multi-laterally agreed discontinuation of our joint venture in
Nanjing through our associated company would allow the Group to concentrate
its resources on primary concerns.
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Chairman’s Statement

FERE
Outlook

After putting behind us not only the multiple tragic natural calamities in China
of a freak nationwide winter deep freeze, the subsequent severe flooding
and the devastating Sichuan earthquake, a contrasting successful Summer
Olympic Games and a year which also witnessed China’s proud historic first
“space walk”, but also coming through a financial tsunami carrying in a tide
of new global economic and political agendas, there were glimpses of guarded
optimism while we were ushering in the new year.

The Board remains confident that the Group is well-positioned in the property
market of Suzhou, Jiangsu Province and that our brand name and goodwill
arising from over 15 years’ presence in Suzhou should continue to bring us
opportunities for new development. Our strategy of selecting sites in high
potential and up-and-coming areas will position the Group for long-term growth
with attractive returns. The Group’s low gearing strategy has also enhanced our
ability to cope with the impact of these uncertain global financial times and to
ride out periods of unforeseen economic downturn, giving us flexibility to grasp
opportunities which come our way.

On top of the pre-sales programme of Phase One of Taihu Garden Court
launched in the first quarter of 2009, there are two other property development
projects namely Wuzhong Garden Court Plaza, the Retail and Commercial Block
of Wuzhong Garden Court project, and our Wujiang residential project, both
coming on-stream to drive revenue growth by offering a broader product mix
compared to residential properties only in Wuzhong Garden Court Phase Two in
2008.

The Board is fully aware that maximising profit margins would be paramount
in determining robust profitability. In this regard and to further maintain the
Group’s competitiveness, cost control/saving measures have already been
implemented in the areas of construction and administration. The Board
believes that with our strategically varied product mix, competitive cost
structure, quality of product, immediate response to the changing market
situation and a more proactive and in-depth approach to identify and attract
targeted buyers, we are able to achieve the best possible prices without
sacrificing sales volume in the years ahead.

As for new site acquisitions going forward in 2009, the Group will adopt a
conservative approach. The erosion of profit margins have been inevitable
but the Group will endeavour to keep costs under control while implementing
appropriate cost saving measures to weather the storm and still be mindful of
safeguarding the quality of the Group’s output.

Maintaining the morale of our team as well as the confidence and trust of our
investors is as always at the top of our agenda. With that in mind, | would like
to thank once again the continued support of our strategic partners, Spinnaker
Capital Group and Asia Financial Group, and for their encouragement in these
very trying times.

May | extend my heartfelt gratitude to all the members of the Board and all our

hardworking staff for their diligence and dedication to the mission tasks ahead
which continue to provide a stern test of our perseverance and professionalism.

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 April 2009
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Review of Operations

During the period under review, the Group continued its focus on property
development and investment business in the cities of Suzhou, Beijing and
Shanghai.

Property Development

During the year, the Group has made inroads into various matters in relation
to the land acquired in 2007 which included new sites handover (from the
government), formation of project companies, obtaining design approvals and
the necessary permits, and completing site preparation before construction.

During the year, the Group also settled the final instalment of the land fee for
the Wujiang residential project. After this final payment, all the land acquired by
the Group has been fully settled in accordance with the terms of the respective
Land Transfer Contracts.

The Group continues to maintain a strong reputation in the Suzhou market
as a developer of consistently high quality and great value-for-money

accommodation. In challenging times, such a reputation has served us well in
distinguishing us from our competitors and their products.

Status of Major Projects

1. Wuzhong District Projects in Suzhou

(a)  Wuzhong Garden Court

e . .
Phase Two units of Wuzhong Garden Court, a major development and revenue
contributor in 2008

{ b o
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Phase Il of this project has been the major development and
revenue contributor in our fiscal year 2008. During the year,
the Group sold and booked in approximately 12,900 sq.m. of
properties resulting in a revenue of approximately HK$76.9
million. By the end of 2008, another approximately 2,600 sg.m.
had been sold but not yet booked in, resulting in revenue of
approximately HK$14.9 million which would be booked in the
first half of 2009. Due to austerity measures imposed by the
Beijing Central Government in early 2008 which continued until
the eruption of the financial tsunami in the third quarter of 2008,
transaction volumes and prices of this project were adversely
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEEN WD AT

(h)

(c)

affected for the period from March to October 2008. However,
sentiment improved strongly since November 2008 due to
the Beijing Central Government’s announcements of stimulus
measures for the economy and that no further new austerity
measures would be enacted by them. As of today, only a few
units of this project remain to be sold and they are expected to be
transacted in 2009.

Wuzhong Garden Court Plaza — Retail and Commercial Block

This is Phase Three of the residential Wuzhong Garden Court
project, comprising approximately 16,500 sq.m. of total gross
floor area in the form of two twelve-storey blocks of retail and
commercial real estate which are designed to be sold as small unit
serviced apartments or offices, and a low rise shopping podium
comprising restaurants and retail outlets. There will also be an
underground carpark.

Construction of the project commenced in the second half of
2008 and pre-sales of this project is expected to be launched in
the second half of 2009. Sales response is expected to be positive
because of its good location in an already vibrant neighbourhood
and the relatively small units on offer would suit many property
buyers’ budgets.

Taihu Garden Court — Phase One

“Showhouse Street” in Taihu Garden Court
b 2ol 1)

Construction of the project started in the first half of 2008 and
Phase One comprises 181 low-density townhouses together with
a clubhouse totalling approximately 58,582 sq.m. of gross floor
area. This project was originally scheduled for sale and delivery in
2008 but there was some unexpected delay in the construction
schedule due to exceptionally adverse weather in Suzhou
throughout 2008. After obtaining the required pre-sale permits
in November 2008, pre-sales commenced in early 2009 with
delivery and relevant revenue booking of the units expected in
2009. An attractive sales centre, 2 showhouses and a “showhouse
street” have already been completed on-site, giving strong positive
first impressions to and attracting prospective buyers.

(b)

(c)
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEEN WD

FEEMN R RELISARNIIREA - BHE
BV - WEREEH)131,445°F 750K - I3
RAAETE#)92,000F 5K » BEZEZisEEER

Taihu Garden Court is located in the historical Guangfu Town of
Wuzhong District, close to the renowned Taihu Lake, on a site
of approximately 131,445 sq.m. with total developable area of
approximately 92,000 sg.m. and comprises low density residences
of modern Chinese style.

(d)  Proposed Office Development — Wuzhong

This office tower project is located in the Economic Development
Zone of Wuzhong District in the Yuexi Sub-town centre which is
in the process of being built into a multi-functional high-tech town
serving to provide for the functions of public sector administration
and private sector commercial, trade, finance, residence and
education.

The site area for the project is approximately 14,600 sq.m.
allowing a total gross floor area of around 58,400 sqg.m. of office
and retail use and an underground area of about 20,000 sg.m.
Design of the project is underway.

Wujiang residential project — Lakeside Garden Court

Our Wujiang residential project will be built in four phases
ROTEFTE B #4557 IR %)%

Design work has commenced on this project which will comprise
approximately 155,200 sqg.m. of gross floor area on a site of around
86,200 sq.m. The first phase will consist of smaller sized residential
high-rise apartment units and pre-sales is scheduled to commence in
the first half of 2010. The expected first batch of units of this project
will be ready for delivery in 2010/2011. In all, there will be four phases
of residential units ranging from high-rise lakeview apartments to more
exclusive low density townhouses producing revenue for the Group in the
next few years.

The project is situated on the east shore of the Long Zhong Lake of
Shengze Town, Wujiang City, in the greater Suzhou metropolitan area.
Shengze Town is a thriving silk and textile trading and production centre
in China.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEEN WD AT

Property Investment
SGV Plaza

This retail plaza situated on the prime stretch of Shi Shan Road in the New
District of Suzhou generated a rental revenue of approximately HK$4.4 million
in 2008 with 100% occupancy. The gross floor area of the plaza is around
11,023 sg.m.

Garden Court Plaza

Garden Court Plaza is a three storey retail centre in the vicinity of Suzhou Garden
Court, with a total gross floor area of around 4,440 sg.m. It was 100% let with a
turnover of approximately HK$2.3 million in 2008.

Suzhou Garden Villa Apartments

As at 31 December 2008, the Group continued to hold approximately 15,900
sg.m. of residential investment properties. During the course of 2008, annual
rental revenue received from residential investment property was approximately
HK$8.1 million on an average occupancy rate of around 64%. The number of
residential investment properties as at 31 December 2008 was 98 units.

Investment in an associate (Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.)

Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group, continued with
a strong performance in 2008, particularly during the Summer Olympic Games
period. Average occupancy and room rates were very high during the period
of the Games, which made up for weaker performances during other times of
the year due to visa restrictions on international travellers. The office towers
underwent some major tenant changes in 2008 due to the expiry of their long
term leases but occupancy rates have resumed their high levels again. For the
month of December 2008, the average occupancy rates of shopping arcade,
offices, serviced apartments and hotels stood at approximately 100%, 90%,
65% and 62% respectively.

Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. contributed a profit of approximately
HK$23.8 million to the Group in 2008. This associate continued to provide a
stable cash inflow for the Group and around 90% of its profit after tax has been
declared as dividend each year. Cash dividend for the year ended 31 December
2007 of approximately HK$21.1 million was received by the Group during the
year under review. Cash dividend expected for the year of 2008 will not be less
than approximately HK$21 million and will be received by the Group around
May/June 2009.
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Other Investments
Shanghai Jia Ding Project

On 3 June 2008, the US$5.5 million Convertible Note held by the Group was
converted into a 10% equity interest in and shareholder’s loan to Key Apex
Limited, the holding company which in turn holds a 99% interest in this project.
This development project includes pure residential and commercial/residential
buildings of total gross floor area of approximately 200,000 sq.m. and 50,000
sq.m. respectively. Construction activities have already begun and sales of its
Phase One units are expected to be launched by the end of 2009.

China Malls Limited (“China Malls”)

The Group and other shareholders of China Malls (an associated company
of the Group in which the Company has a 36% indirect equity interest) have
decided to redirect their respective resources previously identified for the joint
venture onto other projects. In this regard, the relevant project joint venture
company, i.e. Nanjing Shangming South Taiping Road Property Development
Company Limited in which China Malls holds a 60% interest, has already
begun its official winding up procedures during the year under review. The
discontinuation of this joint venture company would not cause any adverse
impact on the Group’s business. The Group will still be looking for business
opportunities in Nanjing city, the provincial capital of Jiangsu Province.

Property Management

As mentioned in the 2008 Interim Report, and subsequent to the 2 July 2008
joint venture agreement entered into between the Group and the subsidiaries
of Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), stricter enforcement of the local
property management regulations and laws has made it unexpectedly difficult
for foreign joint ventures to be granted the licenses needed to tender and
operate locally. As a result, the joint venture in which the Group holds a 40%
interest has been temporised by mutual consent until such time conditions
turn for the better. As the investment in the joint venture company made by the
Group is not material, this would not have any adverse impact on the business
of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group continues to appoint fully licensed and
qualified property management companies in Suzhou and have engaged
Synergis’ expertise in a professional consultant capacity.

Strategic Partnerships
Spinnaker Capital Group

Spinnaker Capital Group, the manager of more than US$7 billion of investors’
funds, remains one of the substantial shareholders of the Company as well
as the strategic minority shareholder of two projects of the Group — Wuzhong
Garden Court and Taihu Garden Court.

Asia Financial Group (“AFG”)

AFG remains a 9.615% shareholder of New Heritage Development Limited (“NH
Development”), a subsidiary of the Company. NH Development is the holding
company of most of the Group’s property project companies in Suzhou. AFG
is also the holder of the Company’s 5% Convertible Notes and is one of the
partners of the property development project in Jiading, Shanghai, in which the
Group holds an approximate 10% interest.
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Financial Review
Turnover

The Group’s turnover mainly comprised of property development sales and
leasing revenue from investment properties.

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2008 was approximately
HK$91.7 million (2007: HK$184.6 million), representing a decrease of 50%
as compared with last year. The turnover included the sale of 4 and 104
apartments in Wuzhong Garden Court Phase | and Phase |l respectively that
generated revenue of approximately HK$76.9 million. Such a decrease in
turnover was due to the decrease in the number of units of Wuzhong Garden
Court sold. The Group’s total gross floor area of development properties sold
and delivered in 2008 amounted to approximately 12,900 sq.m. (2007: 27,604
sq.m.). The decrease in turnover was also a result of both delays in the tight
construction schedule and consequently delays in the delivery date for Phase
One units of Taihu Garden Court.

On the property investment side, the completion of the acquisition of 82
apartment units in Suzhou Garden Villa in 2007 brought in additional leasing
revenue which resulted in an increase of leasing turnover from approximately
HK$8.9 million in 2007 to approximately HK$14.8 million in 2008.

Operating Results

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s gross profit decreased
to approximately HK$23.2 million (2007: HK$56.9 million). The gross profit
margin this year was approximately 25% as compared to approximately 31%
last year. Such a decrease in the gross profit was primarily due to the decrease
in turnover as well as a decrease in average selling price of Wuzhong Garden
Court Phase Two units.

As at 31 December 2008, valuation on the Group’s investment properties
portfolio was conducted by an independent property valuer which resulted
in a negative fair value adjustment of about HK$11.4 million after netting off
deferred taxation (2007: positive fair value adjustment of approximately HK$9.4
million after netting off deferred taxation). The gross fair value adjustment
before netting off deferred taxation of approximately HK$15.3 million was
included in other operating expenses of the Consolidated Income Statement.

Higher financial costs in 2008 as compared to 2007 were mainly due to project
financing loans obtained for our pipeline projects in Suzhou as well as interest
payments for the convertible notes since its issuance in the fourth quarter
of 2007. There was also a non-cash involved item of approximately HK$6.8
million (2007: HK$3.7 million) in the financial costs being the imputed interest
expense on loans from minority shareholders.

Share of results of associates mainly represented profit contributed by the
Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. This associate contributed a profit of
approximately HK$23.8 million (2007: HK$21.4 million) to the Group’s bottom
line in 2008.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the loss attributable to the equity
holders of the Company was approximately HK$33.2 million (2007: profit of
HK$36.1 million) which represented a loss per share (basic) of approximately
2.9HK cents (2007: earnings per share (basic & diluted) of 4.2 HK cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$119.5 million (2007: HK$175.7 million).

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$376.5 million as at
31 December 2008 (2007: HK$299.3 million). Loans repayable within one
year were approximately HK$82.6 million (2007: HK$113.7 million) and the
Group'’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2008 was approximately 34.7% (2007:
28.5%), which was based on bank borrowings to total shareholders’ funds.

Current, Total and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$888.6 million (2007: HK$849.9 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$184.5 million (2007: HK$194.8 million) which represented
an increase in net current assets from approximately HK$655.1 million
to approximately HK$704.1 million as at 31 December 2007 and 2008
respectively.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$1,435.9 million (2007: HK$1,329.6 million) and total liabilities of
approximately HK$580.6 million (2007: HK$482.5 million), representing
a debt ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of approximately 40.4% as at
31 December 2008 (2007: 36.3%). Net assets of the Group increased from
approximately HK$847.2 million to approximately HK$855.4 million as at
31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively.

All land fees for all the land acquired by the Group have been fully paid.

The Directors are confident that when opportunities for landbanking arise, the
Group will be able to utilise its internal reserves and debt financing to meet
these funding requirements as and when necessary.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2008, bank loans of approximately HK$171.6 million (2007:
HK$145.6 million) were secured by the Group’s cash at banks, investment
properties and properties held under development of approximately HK$6.3
million (2007: HK$54.6 million), approximately HK$139.2 million (2007:
HK$129.5 million) and approximately HK$227.7 million (2007: HK$42.5
million) respectively.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During the year,
there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of the Hong Kong
dollar and US dollar. The appreciation in the currency value of the Renminbi
contributed positively to the Group’s bottom line. The Group did not engage
in any derivative activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to
hedge its balance sheet exposure in both 2007 and 2008.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a staff roster of 126 (2007: 112),
of which 98 (2007: 85) employees were based in the mainland China and 28
(2007: 27) employees in Hong Kong SAR. The remuneration of employees
was in line with the market trend and commensurate to the level of pay in
the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives. Share options have also been granted to
certain directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. Total
staff costs incurred in 2008, if excluding share-based payment expenses
of approximately HK$4 million (2007: HK$6.1 million) were approximately
HK$28.4 million (2007: HK$30.3 million).
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The directors view the culture of corporate social responsibility as one of
the significant attributes leading to and resulting from successful business
practices. Sustainable development would be a consequence of the business
sector’'s awareness of relevant social causes, ensuring long-term corporate
success. Therefore, in addition to maximising stakeholders’ interests, the
Group also continues to develop the company’s philosophy of corporate social
responsibility since its listing in 2005. Prior to this, our Chairman and founder
sponsored two workshops to promote the awareness of heritage preservation,
rejuvenation and urban planning in the historic ancient city of Suzhou (1996:
“Suzhou: Shaping an Ancient City for the New China” An EDAW/Pei workshop,
and 1997: “‘One Body, Two Wings' Redevelopment in Suzhou, China” A
Harvard GSD design studio), successfully bringing together civic leaders, top
academics and practitioners to create proposals for balancing commercial,
modernisation and academic interests with a social environment rich in its
ancient local heritage.

A Sense of Responsibility to the Community

The Group has been a recipient of the Platinum Award/President’s Award
(2005/06), Gold Award/Award of Merit (2006/07) from the Community Chest
of Hong Kong and has supported community projects organised by charitable
organisations which include “Dress Special Day” organised by the Community
Chest of Hong Kong and has donated a total amount of HK$1,218,000 to
Hong Kong charitable organisations in the past. Last year, after the devastating
tragedy of the Sichuan earthquake, Directors, staff and a subsidiary of the
Group also contributed to the charity relief programme.

Prior to its December listing on the main board of the HK Stock Exchange in
2005, the Group already embarked on a summer internship programme in
its head office in Hong Kong for two students from the City University of Hong
Kong. They were tasked with corporate and company secretarial responsibilities
and closely supervised by the section head at that time.

In March 2008, the Group launched a 3-month marketing business
development internship program for selected undergraduate students from a
university in Asia. This has given the participant a better understanding of the
marketing business of the property industry in the PRC.

As a listed company, the Group of course adopts an emphasis on profit
and return to shareholders. On the other hand, the Group also strikes the
balance between maximising its profit and contribution to society. Therefore,
environmental awareness is one of the areas which has been covered in
implementing a corporate social responsibility programme. Starting from 2008,
the Group adopted the use of recycled paper for printing its 2008 interim report,
2008 annual report as well as e-card mailouts for the festive season instead of
traditional greeting cards by post, in order to reduce an avoidable consumption
of dwindling paper resources.

A Sense of Responsibhility to our Employees

As of March 2008, the Group implemented a five-day work week for all
employees of the Group thereby saving on commuting costs and enhancing the
balance between work, health and social activity among other things.

Other than the minimum statutory requirements, the Group also provides
its employees with a comprehensive medical insurance plan which includes
hospitalisation cash benefits and an outpatient medical scheme and
encourages regular health check and screenings for all its staff in its Hong Kong
and mainland China offices.

In addition to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, the Group also voluntarily
contributes extra funding to the staff’s provident fund scheme in Hong Kong
which exceeds the minimum statutory requirements.

Unlike some other public listed companies which offer share options to the
Directors and senior management only, the Group offers share options to all
levels of staff in Hong Kong.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGENEEAEZER

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (also known as C.F. TAO), 86, is an Executive
Director, Chairman of the Company and a founder of the Group. He is
responsible for determining the overall business strategies of the Group. He
graduated from Nanjing University 52 A2 with a Bachelor of Science
degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. TAOCHAIFU had played a significant
role in property investment and property development activities in the PRC
since 1978. One of the most important PRC projects that Mr. TAOCHAIFU
participated in was the development of Nanjing Jinling Hotel (F8 R & &8k
J&) in Nanjing, one of the earliest 5-star hotels built in the PRC following the
“opening up” of the PRC to the outside world in 1978. He was appointed as
a director of New Heritage Investments Limited (“NH Investments”) in 1984.
He was involved in establishing and supervising it 515 &35 A BB R A &
(Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.) (“BLTCL"), the joint venture with Beijing
Tourism Administration to develop the Beijing Landmark Towers complex.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the deputy chairman and an executive director of BLTCL.
He was appointed as a director of New Heritage Development Limited (“NH
Development”) in 1991. From 1991 onwards, he was responsible for forming
BN IRES R BREE AR AR (Suzhou Garden Villa Development and
Management Co., Ltd.) (“SGVDM”) and supervising the overall development
of Suzhou Garden Villa and Suzhou Garden Court. He is also the chairman
of SGVDM. Mr. TAOCHAIFU was accredited as an Honorary Citizen by the
municipal government of Suzhou in 1995. He was also a former independent
non-executive director of Jiangsu Expressway Company Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board. Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the Honorary President of Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Associations Limited. He was granted the
“World Outstanding Chinese” award in 2008. He was also awarded an Honorary
Doctor Degree from The University of West Alabama in 2008. Mr. TAOCHAIFU
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004
and is the father of Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Richard, 47, is an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the
Company. He is responsible for the strategic planning and corporate
development of the Group. Mr. TAO has a Bachelor of Science (First Class
Honours) from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, and two Masters
Degrees from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was appointed as
a director of NH Development, NH Investments and SGVDM in 2000, 2001 and
2004 respectively. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. On 28 November 2006, he was appointed as a non-
executive director to Japan Opportunities Fund Il Limited, a closed-ended
Japan property fund listed on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange (CISX Code:
JOB). He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the brother of Mr. TAO
Paul.

Mr. TAO Paul (also known as TAOCHAIFU Porn), 41, is the Managing Director
of the Company. He graduated from the University of Cambridge, England with
a Master of Arts degree. He also holds a Master of Science degree in Real Estate
from the University of Greenwich, England and participated in the Program for
Management Development at the Graduate School of Business Administration,
Harvard University, USA. Mr. TAO has been actively involved in property
development and investment in the PRC for over 10 years since joining the
Group. Mr. TAO was initially responsible for the sales and marketing activities
for the projects in Suzhou, and latterly in general management. He is a member
of The 12th Committee of Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference B A RECAHE @B T2 HMNHE
+-fEZBEeZE. Mr. TAO is also a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. He was
appointed as a director of NH Development, SGVDM and NH Investments in
1997, 1999 and 2001 respectively. Mr. TAO was also appointed as a director of
BLTCL in 2006. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the brother
of Mr. TAO Richard.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, 60, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated in 1970 from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social
Sciences degree with honours majoring in Economics and Accounting. He is
a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers, being qualified in 1977. He
joined Ocean Shipping & Enterprises Limited in 1970 and has over 20 years of
senior management experience. He joined the Group’s associated companies
in November 1999 and has been actively involved in the business planning
and development of the Group’s business in PRC, including but not limited
to contract negotiations with third party professionals and contractors as well
as project management. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 December 2004.

Mr. YIM Chun Leung, 47, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. YIM is a
fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. YIM also holds a Master of Business Administration degree. Mr. YIM has
more than 24 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and finance fields.
Since 1994, Mr. YIM had worked for several listed companies as director or
engaged in senior management position. He was an independent non-executive
director of Era Information & Entertainment Limited from 30 September 2004
to 17 August 2007. Mr. YIM was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 December 2004 and is responsible for corporate finance
matters of the Group.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, GBS, JP, 44, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. CHAN is a graduate and is currently a Trustee of Pomona
College in California, U.S.A.. He is a Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China. He serves as the Chairman of
Lingnan University, the Antiquities Advisory Board, the Advisory Committee on
Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council,
the Council for Substainable Development and the Vice Chairman of the council
of Oxfam Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. CHAN serves as an advisor of Bangkok
Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch and the Chairperson of The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Mr. Chan is currently an executive director
and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. and Asia Insurance
Company, Limited. He is a non-executive director of City e-Solutions Limited, an
independent non-executive director of each of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited,
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited
and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 14 November 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, 47, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. WONG graduated from The University of British Columbia with
a Master Degree of Business Administration in Finance and Management
Information Systems, and a Degree of Bachelor of Applied Science in
Electrical Engineering. He is a member of the Association of Certified General
Accountants’ Association of Canada. Mr. WONG has been working for a number
of international financial institutions and has numerous experiences in the
banking industry. Currently, he is a manager in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited in Hong Kong. He has internal controls and financial reporting
experience. Mr. WONG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 November 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGENEEAEZER

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun, 47, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. SUN graduated from the University of California, Los Angeles
with a Master Degree of Business Administration in 1986. Mr. SUN is the Chief
Executive Officer and a founder of Pan Asian Mortgage Company Limited,
a mortgage securitization conduit. Mr. SUN has over 20 years of secondary
mortgage market experience in Asia and the United States, directly involved
in the structuring, trading and distribution of mortgage-backed securities
globally. In 1997, Mr. SUN was appointed by the Financial Secretary of the
Hong Kong SAR government as the first Chief Operating Officer of The Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation and was entrusted with managing this 100%
government-owned company. Previously, Mr. SUN was an Executive Director in
the Fixed Income International Sales Department of GS (Asia) Securities Limited
and was employed by Goldman Sachs from July 1986 to October 1994. He was
also a Senior Managing Director of the Emerging Markets Fixed Income Sales
Department with Bear Stearns Asia Limited from October 1994 to February
1996. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 14 November 2005.

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, 48, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He was an Adjunct Assistant Professor of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong from September 2001 to January 2002. He has experience in
architectural design. Currently, he is a director of BTR Workshop Limited, an
architectural and design company based in Hong Kong. He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 14 November 2005.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment businesses in the PRC.

Results and Dividend
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 40 to 114.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Convertible Notes and Share Capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible notes and share capital
during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to approximately HK$30.6 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes and under
development are set out on pages 116 to 120.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of

association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

EEREEFWBEABE_ZZEN\F+_A=+—HLF

B2 EEEHBRE -
ERRE

AEEE2EFENSMRERIDRIE X -

RERKRE

AEBHE—TT/\F+- A=+ BULFEOEAREA
R BB IURBR BA0R 1 LUE IR0 -
EFSTRARME T

BRI S -
AEREREREE

ARRRERZ AT
BmRMITE27 528 °

ENF+Z A=+ —HLEFER

S I EN-E SIS RNl

i

ARBRAEEZ FRERFAZEHIER
KMFE30(D) R AR At E B o

7 Bl B B 75 3

A R

RZZZNF+-_A=+—0  ARBZAHESIREELD
30,600,000 7T °

W% BERRE

REEZME - BERRBOESFEEN P HHREM T
13-

FEWE

ERERENEIZMERBERTMEZFBRRELIE
1208 -

BLEERE

ARRMARERANKFEEFREENLEERELEE
REMIES - REANRRIAZ L PIRIR B RRBEEH A -

FERRERAT —TT/\FER 19



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE
Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 115.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Other than
the issue of 34,545,000 shares by the Company during the year, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr.
KONG Mui Sum Lawrence and Mr. YIM Chun Leung will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 16 to 18.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

The former service contracts entered into by the Company and each executive
director were expired on 30 November 2007. On 7 September 2007, each
of the executive directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of two years commencing on 1 December 2007
and is subject to termination by the executive director giving not less than 3
months’ written notice or by payment in lieu of such notice. The Company may
immediately terminate the service contract without any compensation to the
respective executive director under certain conditions, as set out in the service
contracts.

The former letters of appointment entered into by the Company and the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company were expired on 13 November 2008. On 22 October 2008, the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing on 14 November 2008 and may be terminated by
either party by giving one month’s written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a contract of service
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

In February 2009, each of the three executive directors (who are also the
substantial shareholders) and each of the remaining six directors of the
Company has served a written notice to the Company to voluntarily reduce by
50% and 10% of their monthly salary respectively for the period from March
2009 to June 2009.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the

Group’s business are set out in the section headed “Connected Transaction” in
this report.

Directors’ Report
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EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Sharesand EZERIFIETHRAENAATNRGEME
Underlying Shares of the Company

RO P EENER

As at 31 December 2008, the Directors had the following interests in the shares RIZEENF+-A=+—8  REAQXGIEEZFLEE
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register 1&0I([FH REEEG ) E35218 B FEELMAR » &
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities ERARBWRG RABRG RS LS - SUREBR
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company Frsgz EmRAI(T EHR R TS E S ETE S X HIE
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions AP RIBAE A A A D T R AR ERNT

by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of

the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

(A) Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the A) RAEAATIBROHERZRENBRASTETETHEHBERG 2

Company R
Number of Approximate
underlying Shares percentage of
(under equity the issued share
Long position/ Number of derivatives of Aggregate capital of
Name of Director Short position Capacity Shares held the Company) Interests the Company
MR
A (AE b N Tt
FrEE AR BITRAZ
HEMA "B KA 514 ROEHAE FTETAT) B G ER
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Long Position Interests of 485,616,700 510,685,561 43.92
Choofuang He controlled (Note 1)
PE R A corporation (Hiz#1)
R E R
Long Position Personal 11,515,000 13,553,861
e interest (Note 2)
B AR (K1:22)
Mr. TAO Richard Long Position Interests of 485,616,700 522,512,446 44.94
PEZRAT R E e controlled (Note 1)
corporation (K1)
Ry AE R
Long Position Personal 22,701,757 14,193,989
155~ interest (Note 2)
EAER (Hiz#2)
Mr. TAO Paul Long Position Interests of 485,616,700 522,512,446 44 .94
PR A He controlled (Note 1)
corporation (BisE1)
R B
Long Position Personal 22,701,757 14,193,989
e interest (Note 2)
B AR (K1:22)
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Long Position Personal 2,500,220 25,708,989 28,209,209 2.43
Lawrence S5y interest (Note 2)
LI E &A= (Hiiz2)
Mr. YIM Chun Leung Long Position Personal 1,232,605 25,708,989 26,941,594 2.32
EIRzD A& e interest (Note 2)
EAER (Hiz%2)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'a)

(A)

(B)

Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the
Company (Cont'd)

Notes:

1. Belbroughton Limited (“Belbroughton”) is the legal and beneficial
owner of 485,616,700 shares. Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by
Seal United Investments Limited (“Seal United”) and 80% by United
Islands Group Limited (“United Islands”). Seal United is owned
by Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (“Mr. C.F. TAO") and his spouse,
Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy (“Mrs. TAO”) in equal proportions.
United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard
(the son of Mr. C.F. TAO), Mr. TAO Paul (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO) and
Ms. TAO Miriam (the daughter of Mr. C.F. TAO) in equal proportions.
Accordingly, Seal United, United Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO,
Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be
interested in 485,616,700 shares held by Belbroughton.

2. Share options were granted on 4 April 2006, 4 July 2007, 18 October 2007,
29 April 2008, 21 July 2008 and 19 November 2008 respectively. Details
of share options granted to the Directors of the Company are set out in part
(B) of this section.

Long position in underlying shares — share options

Under the share option scheme of the Company, share options may be
granted to certain participants including the Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. Details of share options granted to the Directors are as follows:

Directors’ Report
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Belbroughton Limited ([ Belbroughton |) £485,616,700
R A EE A A © Seal United Investments
Limited ([ Seal United J) }& United Islands Group
Limited([ United Islands )% Bl# A& Belbroughton
20% &% 80% 2 # %5 ° Seal United Jh M # B %%
E(mEmaE]) RERBEEBE LT ([
AAR) ZAEELLBIHEA o M United Islands Bl i
PBERLE  BAK BRWAEEEELEZR
F) - BHEEE(BEHEEZRTF) RERAEZ T
(FEHEEZRRE)REELPIMES - Bt - Seal
United * United IslandsEREEREE - AKX
BMRITEE  BHETERBRELTHEEAR
BelbroughtonffT## 2 525485,616, 700 IR (H B
W o

BREDSIN-_ZTAFNANAE - ZTTLF
+tAmA - ZET+EF+A+NB - ZTT/\FMA
ZthE - ZEENFELAZ+—ARZZTENF
FT—ATHBEL BTFARREE 2 BREFET
HANAEI(B)IAT °

(B) IHEARMD2iFE - BIRE

RBEARE 2 BRAETS  BRENTETET2HEA
(BREERARFNAMBAR ZRE)ARBAR
Az c RYEFZBBRHEFRNT

Number of share options

BREHE
Balance at Granted Exercised Balance at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period 2008 the year the year 2008 per share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$
i
i —BENF
—EBEN\F +=8
=l =! RER RER =+-H B8R
EEEH R BE fTHEHm 288 b Cig:d 2B THEE
B/B/% B/B/% BT
Mr. TAOCHAIFU 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,188,225 - - 6,188,225 0.806 (Notexfzit)
Choofuang
BEELE 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635 (Notex(fsit)
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 - 2,500,000  (2,500,000) - 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 - 5,271,000  (5,271,000) - 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000  (3,744,000) - 0.192
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EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'a)

EERFETBRAEBRERTNKREG RHE
RO EENER )

(B)  Long position in underlying shares — share options (Cont'd) (B) HERKZGA-BREE)
Number of share options
BREHE
Balance at Granted Exercised Balance at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period 2008 the year the year 2008 per share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$
®
» —EEINF
—2E/\F +=A
—B—H RER RER =+-A BR
E=E8 REAH Gcdilo 2B B e 2R T6EE
B/R/fF B/ B/ /% BT
Mr. TAO Richard 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806 Notexiiz)
BREWEE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635 Notex#iz)
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000  (3,200,000) - 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000  (4,571,000) - 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000  (3,744,000) - 0.192
Mr. TAO Paul 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806 Notexiz)
ML
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635 Mote)#iz)
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000  (3,200,000) - 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000  (4,571,000) - 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000  (3,744,000) - 0.192
Mr. KONG Mui Sum 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806 Noteliiz)
Lawrence
IR 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635 Notex#iz)
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000 - 4,571,000 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 - 3,744,000 0.192
Mr. YIM Chun Leung 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806 Noteliiz)
BiRm AL
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635 (Notex#iz)
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000 - 4,571,000 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 - 3,744,000 0.192
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'd)

(B)  Long position in underlying shares — share options (Cont'd)

Note: Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme, following the adjustment
events arising from the changes in the Company’s capital structure in 2007,
the respective exercise prices per share of the unexercised options and
the respective number of share options exercisable have been adjusted.
The auditors of the Company have certified the adjustments were fair and
reasonable.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief executives
and their associates, had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this
report.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2008, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital:
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B EXWEEIN  ARBZEE  TRTHRABRRBEEFZ
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FERRRAQFANRG RAEBRS %
BNER

R RE 7 MR RO B XV B 336 1678 T 17 B m B mfit A
RORIZBENFTZA=FT—H  ARFZEERR
(RERBZBEITRAMSSIIA L) B BHMARE B2
= FREAT

Long position in shares R ZHR
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Number of Aggregate capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held Interests the Company Notes
r |
BRITRAE
RREB BE/ KA E) RO EA A AT Kz
Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy Long position Interests of controlled 485,616,700 510,685,561 43.92 1
MEBELT 5o} corporation
R RER
Interest of spouse 25,068,861
[T
Belbroughton Limited Long position Beneficial owner 485,616,700 485,616,700 41.76 1
59} EHHEEA
Seal United Investments Limited Long position Interests of controlled 485,616,700 485,616,700 41.76 1
55} corporation
ey
United Islands Group Limited Long position Interests of controlled 485,616,700 485,616,700 41.76 1
e corporation
LB RER
Ms. TAO Miriam Long position Interests of controlled 485,616,700 485,616,700 41.76 1
M@zt e corporation
R ERER
Tian Xiang Business Limited Long position Beneficial owner 206,993,578 206,993,578 17.80 N/A

AEFEHARAH R BHBEEA
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and TERRAEATNRG RHER G %

Underlying Shares of the Company (Contd) BHRERE)
Long position in shares (Cont'd) BB 2iFE (&)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Number of Aggregate capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held Interests the Company Notes
EERAT
BRITRE
BRERAR ®E/ KA L FERAHA ERAE BABSH /i3
Spinnaker Capital Limited Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.94 2
e REKE
Spinnaker Asset Management Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.94 2
~ SAM Limited [55-) REKE
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Long position Person having a security 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.94 3
EEERT 55-) interest in shares
HROFEREEZROA
Asia Financial Holdings Limited Long position Beneficial owner 45,454 545 68,181,818 5.86 4
TMERERGER) e EmEAA
BRRHE
Interests of controlled 22,727,273
corporation
I EE R
Oriental Pearl International Inc. Long position Beneficial owner 58,268,871 58,268,871 5.01 5
e EmBAA
Mr. KINOSHITA James Hajime Long position Interests of controlled 58,268,871 58,268,871 5.01 5
ATF—%4% HE corporation
i EERER
Mrs. KINOSHITA CHEUNG Long position Interests of controlled 58,268,871 58,268,871 5.01 5
Yuen Shiu Lana HE corporation
INIESES - RimEE R
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'a)

Long position in shares (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. Belbroughton is the legal and beneficial owner of 485,616,700 shares.
Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United and 80% by United
Islands. Seal United is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO
in equal proportions. United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO,
Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam in equal proportions.
Accordingly, Seal United, United Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO,
Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be
interested in 485,616,700 shares held by Belbroughton.

2. Spinnaker Capital Limited and Spinnaker Asset Management — SAM
Limited (together “Spinnaker Group”) are investment managers and the
controlling shareholders of Spinnaker Global Opportunity Fund Limited
(“GO Fund”), Spinnaker Global Emerging Markets Fund Limited (“GEM
Fund”) and Spinnaker Global Strategic Fund Limited (“GS Fund”). As at
31 December 2008, GO Fund, GEM Fund and GS Fund held 24,927,122
shares, 44,314,883 shares and 23,080,668 shares, respectively.

3. The shares are held under Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft custody for
Spinnaker Group.

4. These 68,181,818 underlying shares represent the shares which may
be issued upon full conversion of 5% convertible notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$75 million with maturity date falling 60 months
from 15 October 2007, the date of issue of the convertible notes.

5. Oriental Pearl International Inc. is the legal and beneficial owner of
58,268,871 shares, which is owned by Mr. KINOSHITA James Hajime
and Mrs. KINOSHITA CHEUNG Yuen Shiu Lana in equal proportions.
Accordingly, Mr. KINOSHITA James Hajime and Mrs. KINOSHITA CHEUNG
Yuen Shiu Lana, both being independent third parties, are deemed to be
interested in 58,268,871 shares.

Share Options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the movements in the share
options are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 62%
— five largest suppliers combined 89%
Sales

— the largest customer 2%
— five largest customers combined 7%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers.
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EEERE
Connected Transaction

During the year, the Group had the following connected transactions/continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which were disclosed in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. Convertible Note Subscription Agreement

On 28 May 2007, Healthy Castle Investments Limited (“Healthy Castle”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a convertible
note subscription agreement with Key Apex Limited (“Key Apex”) (a
subsidiary of a company which is deemed to be controlled by the
associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, the non-executive director
of the Company) whereby Healthy Castle agreed to subscribe and Key
Apex agreed to issue the US$5.5 million convertible note with maturity
date falling on the first anniversary of the date of issue of convertible note
(“Due Date”) at zero coupon. The principal amount of the convertible
note will be repaid in full on the Due Date if the conditions to convert
the convertible note cannot be fulfilled. Pursuant to the terms of
the convertible note, shares representing approximately 10% of the
enlarged issued share capital of Key Apex as at the date of conversion
will be issued by Key Apex to Healthy Castle at the conversion price of
US$1.00 per share (being the par value of each share in the capital of
Key Apex) on the date which falls three days after the date when the
99% owned subsidiary established in the PRC has obtained the land use
right certificate of a piece of land in Shanghai in the PRC. The balance
of the principal amount of convertible note after deduction of the total
conversion price will be treated as an interest-free shareholder’s loan
advanced by Healthy Castle to Key Apex. This transaction was approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
on 20 June 2007. The convertible note issued on 18 July 2007 was
converted into 10% equity interest in and shareholder’s loan to Key Apex
on 3 June 2008.

2. HK$75 million 5% Convertible Notes Subscription Agreement

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Asia Financial Holdings Limited (“AFHL") and Asia Insurance
Company, Limited (“AICL") (AICL is a subsidiary of AFHL which is
controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, the non-
executive director of the Company) whereby the Company agreed
to issue and AFHL and AICL agreed to subscribe the HK$50 million
and HK$25 million 5% convertible note (“Convertible Notes”) with
maturity date falling 60 months from the date of issue of the Convertible
Notes respectively. Pursuant to the term of the Convertible Notes, the
holder of the Convertible Notes can convert the Convertible Notes at
the conversion price of HK$1.10 per share. The principal amount
of HK$35 million (HK$25 million for AFHL and HK$10 million for
AICL) of the Convertible Notes shall be compulsorily converted at the
conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days if the closing
price per share is HK$1.10 or higher for ten consecutive trading days
during the period from the issue day of the Convertible Notes up to
five business days prior to the maturity date. This transaction was
approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 10 October 2007. The Convertible Notes were issued on
15 October 2007.
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Connected Transaction (Contd)

Tenancy Agreement and Licence Agreement

On 26 November 2007, New Heritage Management Limited (“NH
Management”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as tenant entered into a tenancy agreement with Fontwell Holdings
Limited (“Fontwell”), (beneficially owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his family
members) as landlord for the lease of Room 2301, 23rd Floor, Fortis
Tower (Formerly known as Fortis Bank Tower), Nos.77-79 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong and Nos.117-119 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong at a
monthly rental of HK$100,000 for the period from 1 February 2008 to
31 January 2009 and HK$105,000 for the period from 1 February 2009
to 31 January 2010 (exclusive of government rates and management
fees).

On 26 November 2007, NH Management as licensee entered into a
licence agreement with Fontwell as licensor for obtaining the licence
to use by the Group of car parking spaces nos. 28 and 51 on the
2nd Floor of Fortis Tower, Nos. 77-79 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
and Nos. 117-119 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong at a monthly licence fee of
HK$7,000, exclusive of government rates and management fees, for
a term of 2 years commencing on 1 February 2008 and expiring on
31 January 2010.

On 27 February 2009, NH Management entered into a supplemental
agreement with Fontwell to amend the terms of the Tenancy Agreement.
Under the supplemental agreement, the monthly rental was reduced
from HK$105,000 to HK$52,500 for the period from 1 March 2009 to
31 January 2010 (exclusive of government rates and management fees).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and confirmed
that the above continuing connected transaction has been entered into
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the above relevant agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole. The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the
board of directors of the Company to the effect that the above continuing
connected transaction: (i) has been approved by the board of directors
of the Company; (ii) has been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transaction; and (iii) the aggregate
annual amount of the transaction has not exceeded the relevant caps in
the previous announcement.
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Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

1.

Fitness club agreement

In November 2004, &N #R2E50 38 25 3R B IR B PR A A (Suzhou Garden
Villa Development and Management Co. Ltd.) (“SGVDM”) entered into
an agreement with 8% 55,85 FH R A 7] (Clark Hatch Fitness
Centers (Shanghai) Ltd.) (“Clark Hatch Shanghai”) (Mr. TAO Paul, the
Managing Director, has an indirect interest) (which was subsequently
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 18 September
2005 made between the same parties) (collectively, the “Fitness Club
Agreement”), pursuant to which SGVDM provides Clark Hatch Shanghai
with the sports and fitness club premises with facilities located on the
3rd Floor, Block 11, Suzhou Garden Court (the “Club House”), and Clark
Hatch Shanghai provides cleaning, maintenance, repair, operation and
janitorial services for the Club House, for a term of 3 years commencing
on 1 January 2005. During the term, Clark Hatch Shanghai is required
to pay SGVDM a monthly rental in a sum (i) of RMB60,000 or (ii) equal
to 30% of the monthly gross revenues (before taxes) received by Clark
Hatch Shanghai from the operation of Club House, whichever is higher.
In 2005, the Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for and the
Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirement under Rule 14A.47 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the transactions contemplated under the Fitness Club
Agreement for the 2 years ending 31 December 2007. Since the total
annual rental received by the Group from Clark Hatch Shanghai under
the Fitness Club Agreement for the year ending 31 December 2007 was
RMB720,000, therefore the transactions contemplated under the Fitness
Club Agreement for the year ending 31 December 2007 was exempt
from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2007, the Fitness Club Agreement was renewed at a
monthly rental of RMB60,000 for a term of two years commencing on
1 January 2008.

Tenancy agreement of Hong Kong office

On 21 March 2005, NH Management as tenant entered into a tenancy
agreement with Fontwell as landlord for the lease of Room 2301, 23rd
Floor, Fortis Tower, Nos. 77-79 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong and Nos.
117-119 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong for the use by the Group at a monthly
rental of HK$49,000, exclusive of government rates and management
fees, for a term of one year commencing on 1 February 2005 and
expiring on 31 January 2006. On 25 January 2006, the tenancy
agreement was renewed at a monthly rental of HK$72,000, exclusive
of government rates and management fees, for a term of one year
commencing on 1 February 2006 and expiring on 31 January 2007.
On 25 January 2007, the tenancy agreement was further renewed at
a monthly rental of HK$78,000, exclusive of government rates and
management fees, for a term of one year commencing on 1 February
2007 and expiring on 31 January 2008. On 26 November 2007, the
tenancy agreement was further renewed. Details of which were disclosed
under the section headed “Connected Transaction”.
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Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction (Cont'd)
3. Licence agreement

On 21 March 2005, NH Management as licensee entered into a
licence agreement with Fontwell as licensor for obtaining the licence
to use by the Group of car parking spaces nos. 28 and 51 on the
2nd Floor of Fortis Tower, Nos. 77-79 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
and Nos. 117-119 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong at a monthly licence
fee of HK$7,000, exclusive of government rates and management
fees, for a term of one year commencing from 1 February 2005 to
31 January 2006. On 25 January 2006, the above licence agreement
was renewed at a monthly licence fee of HK$7,000, exclusive of
government rates and management fees, for a term of one year
commencing on 1 February 2006 and expiring on 31 January 2007.
On 25 January 2007, the licence agreement was further renewed at a
monthly licence fee of HK$5,000, exclusive of government rates and
management fees, for a term of one year commencing from
1 February 2007 to 31 January 2008. On 26 November 2007, the
licence agreement was further renewed. Details of which were disclosed
under the section headed “Connected Transaction”.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year, the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules was as follows:

Mr. C.F. TAO, Chairman of the Company, and his family members (including
Mr. TAO Richard, Vice Chairman and Mr. TAO Paul, Managing Director) are
interested in certain properties in the PRC which may constitute a competing
business to the Group. The properties include two villas in Suzhou Garden
Court of a total gross floor area of 770.38 sq.m. developed by a subsidiary of
the Company.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 32 to 37 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditors
The Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for their reappointment as auditors

of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. TAO)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 April 2009
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group has complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14, the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices, of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions.

Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors. All five executive directors are
members of the executive committee of the Company responsible for dealing
with the business of the Company in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). All Directors (including
independent non-executive directors) have been consulted on all major and
material matters of the Company.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2008 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

The numbers of independent non-executive directors have met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai has
appropriate accounting professional qualification. The Company has appointed
a Managing Director instead of a chief executive officer.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately by
two executive directors to ensure their respective independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for determining overall business
strategies of the Group. The duty of the Chairman is to work closely with audit,
nomination and remuneration committee of the Company and to ensure
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. The Managing Director is responsible for general
management of the Group. The Managing Director is also responsible to work
closely with the executive committee of the Company to ensure management
strategies, plans and performance of the Group are appropriately represented to
the Board and to provide guidance to the Board on major issues.
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Board Composition (Cont'd)

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specially delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. TAO), the Chairman of the Company,
is the father of Mr. TAO Richard, the Vice Chairman of the Company, and
Mr. TAO Paul, Managing Director of the Company. Further details of the
Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The non-executive
director and all the independent non-executive directors have contracts with
the Company for a period of three years commencing from 14 November 2008
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the company secretary and
are available for inspection by the Directors and auditors of the Company.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 December 2008, four regular full Board meetings were
held to review the business of the Group and to approve the financial results
of the Group and the attendance of individual members at the meetings of the
Board are set out as follows:—
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Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERE BTEEAE

Executive Director BITEE

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) BEmEE (T/E) 4/4
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRI E (B1EE) 4/4
Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) W E Sk (EFAEHHE) 4/4
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence STRRRR A 4/4
Mr. YIM Chun Leung BRI E 4/4
Non-Executive Director HBHITESE

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut PBRES B ek 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Director BUHBITESE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FREFLE 44
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun R BN E 4/4
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique FREEST ST HE 3/4
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CEERRE

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. The obligation to follow the Listing Rules are set out in the terms of
the service contracts of each executive director and the letters of appointment
of the non-executive director and each independent non-executive director.
Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The Audit
Committee consists of independent non-executive directors only. The members
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, who possesses a professional accounting qualification
and relevant accounting experience, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditors of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve the
financial reporting process and internal control systems of the Group. The
Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2008 have been reviewed
by the members of the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosure have been made.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERE BTEEAY

RE BB

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FRELE
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BRI EE
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PR&E ST

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14 November 2005 with
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The members of the
Nomination Committee consist of one executive director and two independent
non-executive directors.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique (Chairman)

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. TAO Paul

3/3
3/3
2/3
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Nomination Committee (Cont'd)

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of directors and management of Board
succession. No director is appointed or removed during the year.

The Nomination Committee has considered the past performance, qualification,
general market conditions and the Company’s articles of association in selecting
and recommending directors for retirement rotation.

The Nomination Committee resolved that all the existing directors should be
recommended to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. KONG Mui Sum
Lawrence and Mr. YIM Chun Leung would retire, and being eligible, would
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERE BTEEAE

REERE

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique FREEST ST HE
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun F B AE
Mr. TAO Paul FREH &

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The members
of the Remuneration Committee consist of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique
Mr. TAO Richard

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to Directors and senior management including the recommendation to the
Board on the granting of share options to Directors pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed
the existing terms of remunerations of all the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee has considered factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considered that the existing terms
of remunerations of the Directors were fair and reasonable.
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Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the year. The

FMESS ()
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attendance of each member is set out as follows: sy

Name of member Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
MEER HESERY BTERAY

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun R Bt 2/2

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique Lyt 2/2

Mr. TAO Richard PRI E 2/2

Internal Control ) 2B B 5

The Board is responsible overall for the system of internal controls of the
Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard both
the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of internal controls and
the review of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

During the year under review, the Company continued the engagement of an
external independent professional consultant to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal controls. Relevant applicable recommendations
made by the same consultant in previous years have been implemented in
stages by the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

The Board is of the view that the system of internal controls adopted for the
year ended 31 December 2008 is sound and is effective to safeguard both the
interests of the shareholders and the Group’s assets.

Investor Relationship and Communication

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted
regularly. The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements. In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are arranged and
handled by the executive directors and designated senior executives according
to established practices and procedures of the Company. The Company has
announced its annual results of the year under review in a timely manner,
which is before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which
give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true
and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently.

It is the responsibility of the auditors to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion to the
members of the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The auditors
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditors’ report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of results and cash flow for that period.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations; made adjustments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The fee in respect of audit and non-audit (review) services provided to the

Group by independent auditors for the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to HK$1,030,000 and HK$150,000 respectively.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

18 3 % SR R

(Y GrantThornton
9E

To the members of New Heritage Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Heritage
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) set out on pages 40 to 114, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

21 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

e ER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET T
Revenue & 5 91,715 184,560
Cost of sales SHERA (68,480) (127,627)
Gross profit EF 23,235 56,933
Other income =L PN 5 3,782 31,018
Selling expenses HEMXZ (8,482) (5,833)
Administrative expenses THRAX (46,002) (42,891)
Other operating (expense)/income H s (FX), WA (16,513) 14,058
Finance costs REE AN 7 (25,955) (12,975)
Share of results of associates FEGE & A RIEE 23,831 21,417
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiAT(EE) BA 8 (46,104) 61,727
Taxation 18 9 83 (16,162)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(HRE) BRI (46,021) 45,565
Attributable to: BUF AL e -
Equity holders of the Company AAFERFEA (33,225) 36,115
Minority interests DERR R RS (12,796) 9,450
(46,021) 45,565
Dividends RE 10 - 11,283
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(ER) BF 11
— Basic (HK cents) —ER(EL) (2.9) 4.2
— Diluted (HK cents) — BE CGBAL) N/A 4.2
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As at 31 December 2008
RZZEENF+_A=+—H

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HieE FERT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Goodwill FEEs 12 37,048 37,048
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MERE 13 29,665 17,602
Investment properties A E 14 311,754 310,867
Interests in associates i dlNG = o) e 16 123,674 112,459
Available-for-sale financial asset AEHENSREE 17 43,318 -
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE = 18 1,898 1,766
547,357 479,742
Current assets RBEE
Properties held under development HRBYE 19 657,376 330,001
Properties held for sale HEME 20 58,753 19,284
Inventories FE 21 121 136
Accounts receivable FEULER X 22 149 514
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEE  ERFRIER
other receivables H b fE YR IE 23 37,024 262,835
Pledged bank deposits BRI TF K 31 9,165 61,430
Cash at banks and in hand RITETF RIS 32 125,973 175,701
888,561 849,901
Current liabilities RENEE
Accounts payable J,T%THEE%X 24 55,842 31,081
Accruals, deposits received and EBErER - ElRE R
other payables E b R RIE 25 35,133 28,717
Provision for tax TRIERME 10,886 21,323
Borrowings [=9=d 26 82,649 113,727
184,510 194,848
Net current assets TREEEEE 704,051 655,053
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBERE 1,251,408 1,134,795
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings TE 26 293,832 185,547
Convertible notes —Hﬁ’ﬁxKTF 27 72,212 71,482
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIIERE 18 30,009 30,583
396,053 287,612
Net assets EEFE 855,355 847,183
EQUITY E=
Capital and reserves attributable to AATERFTEA
equity holders of the Company EERAR &S
Share capital BN 28 11,628 11,283
Reserves i 30(a) 754,075 733,760
Proposed final dividend KR A EARL B, 30(a) - 11,283
765,703 756,326
Minority interests DERRERS 89,652 90,857
Total equity e 855,355 847,183

TAO Richard
(CEE
Director

BE

TAO Paul
[FF 7R
Director

BE

FERRERAT —TT/\FESR 41



Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2008
RZZZENF+=-—A=1+—H

2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FE T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ATAKRE 15(a) 119,398 118,831
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments TaftsE 300 227
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG %) 15(b) 465,771 436,656
Cash at banks and in hand RITEEFELES 2,250 15,880
468,321 452,763
Current liabilities RBARG
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R H AL IR 4,585 4,966
Financial guarantee contracts BIISEREX 36 1,333 7,179
5,918 12,145
Net current assets RBEETFE 462,403 440,618
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 581,801 559,449
Non-current liabilities FEREBARE
Convertible notes EEELES 27 72,212 71,482
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIBEEE 18 460 580
72,672 72,062
Net assets EEFE 509,129 487,387
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to AATEREZEA
equity holders of the Company R AR
Share capital R& AR 28 11,628 11,283
Reserves & 30(b) 497,501 464,821
Proposed final dividend BRARHARR 8 30(b) - 11,283
Total equity RS 509,129 487,387

TAO Richard
PR AT
Director

EF

TAO Paul
P 851
Director

EBEF
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
MERERER

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FHT
Cash flows from operating activities RETENERESR
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiRT(E51R), /& F| (46,104) 61,727
Adjustments for: FHRIER -
Depreciation e 3,476 2,382
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEYE  BE M RED
plant and equipment Eia, (W) 23 (6)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREYERNER 1,247 -
Gain on partial disposal of interests HENB AR
in subsidiaries ol g - (22,204)
Fair value adjustments on BEMEAREE
investment properties HEES 15,266 (14,058)
Share of result of associates il AN (23,831) (21,417)
Employee share-based payment expense ARG D S A5HE B MR 2 4,008 6,132
Impairment loss on other receivables E b EYCHIB R R E R R 2,503 -
Interest income FBUA (2,624) (7,104)
Interest expenses B 25,955 12,975
Operating (loss)/profit before working RETEEE S EFHATLLE
capital changes (E518), /&7 (20,081) 18,427
Increase in properties held under development — ZXE AR ¥ 242 40 (254,610) (356,783)
Decrease in properties held for sale FEYER D 60,519 117,028
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories TFEmD,/(38m) 15 (21)
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable FEURBR RN (32 40) 365 (514)
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits paid, BEffEE  FEFIE R E AR RIE
prepayments and other receivables S (3E4n) 42,310 (251,748)
Increase in accounts payable, accruals, FERTERF - FBETER - BEduRSE
deposits received and other payables R B A e~ R IE I AN 28,853 83,194
Decrease/(Increase) in amount JEUES N B FIE
due from associates w(3Ehn) 122 (35)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits B EIRERTTEER L (3 0) 52,265 (53,629)
Cash used in operations KEEBATARS (90,242) (444,081)
Interest paid BATF S (14,692) (8,301)
Income taxes paid EAET5H (13,060) (15,956)
Net cash used in operating activities ERENFTAMIR G F 5 (117,994) (468,338)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FE T FAET
Cash flows from investing activities RETBNEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BB NRE (14,551) (5,677)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BE REE
plant and equipment FRiS 578 113 140
Proceeds from sale of investment properties HE B YRS RIA 5,260 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of interests HEWB AR
in subsidiaries FriSsIE = 71,832
Additions to investment properties NEWREME - (98,827)
Dividends received from an associate W ER— KB A TR AR B 21,055 18,757
Interest received BUFIE 2,624 7,104
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities WEEBEL(FTA)HIREFE 14,501 (6,671)
Cash flows from financing activities METENESRE
Proceeds from issuance of share capital TR FTE A 9,813 162,044
Share issue expenses RN EEITHEZ = (2,477)
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes LT AR IR PSS I8 - 75,000
Borrowings raised EEEM 244,900 458,761
Repayment of borrowings BEREEX (188,441) (181,705)
Interest paid on convertible notes B AREREET S (3,750) (801)
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder L NG
of a subsidiary HE 3,282 =
Dividends paid to Company’s equity holders ERAREERFE ARE (11,372) (7,135)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B LHARRRE (12,141) (1,600)
Net cash from financing activities BB EHEANIR S ERE 42,291 502,087
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBELSSEYWORD), /&
and cash equivalents FEE (61,202) 27,078
Effect of foreign exchange difference ELREENTE 4,986 16,503
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—BNHRESRHASZEY 175,701 132,120
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt+t=-—B=+—HHRE
RBESEEY 32 119,485 175,701
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
E—EENF+_A=F+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERERBER

Minority
interests Total
Equity attibutable to equity holders of the Company DERR
FOTREREARLRS i h
Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment
Share Share option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained  Proposed
capital  premium  reserves  reserves  reseve  reserve  reserve reserve profits  dividend Total
T8k AEDE
BiE 28 HERRE
Kx  RAEE R EEERE AHRE EREE EIRE iERE RERA  RERS @it
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén TEn  TEr  TER  TExn  TEr  TEn  FEx  TEn  TEx  TEx  TEn  TER
Balance at 1 January 2007 R=3St5-A-BHESR 713 223643 7628 - 8993% (232)  (3989) 6346 12299 713 458506 10654 469,160
Net income recognised directly in equity
- Translation i - - - - - - 26,173 - - - 26,173 6,99 33,169
— Share of associate's translation ~EFBENTNE - - - - = = 4939 = = = 4939 = 4939
- Share of associate's hotel property -EEBEARES
revaluation surplus MESHRE - - - - - 7,602 - - - - 7,602 - 7602
Profitfor the year EERF - - - - - - - - BB - BB 9450 45565
Total recognised income and expense for the year — AEE DRI KBTS - - - - - 7602 31112 - BB - 7489 16446 91275
Transfer 4 - - - - - - - 8316 (6679) - 1,641 (1,641) -
Share of associate's statutory reserve EEBEARETHE - - - - - - - 2,001 (2,061) - - - -
Minority interest arising from partal disposal REEHBARSAHERMEL
of interests in subsidiaries LERERE - - - - - - - - - - - 1968 49628
Fair valug adjustment on initial recognition of loans S0 $IRE & 2 & EE26
from minority shareholders EIRLBERR - - - - - - - - - - - 17310 17310
Employee share based compensation (note 29) RS A EESH ML) - - 6,132 - - - - - - - 6,132 - 6,132
Surplus on revaluation upon transfer from property,  ¥1% - MERAGEATRENLEE
plant and equipment to investment property EE - - - - - 2,119 - - - - 2,119 - 2,119
Arising from issue of ordinary shares on WIhAA R ERRmEE
bonus issue (note 28(b)) (Kiz280) 143 (143) = = = = = S = = = = =
Arising from issue of ordinary shares as R-ST EURREHEET
2006 scrip dividend (note 28(c)) LERmEL(Hi80) 28 2,008 = = = = = = = = 2,036 = 20360
Arising from issue of orcinary shares on subscription R B EEATEARMEL
(note 28(a) (Hit28) 900 56,756 - - - - - - - - 57,656 - 57,656
Arising from issue of ordinary shares upon RitRETEARMES
rights issue (note 28(d)) (Hi228() 3077 156931 - - - - - - - - 160,008 - 160,008
Share issue expenses RARARET -4 = = - = = = = -4 VX))
Issue of convertible notes T HRES - - - 3,650 - - - - - - 3,650 - 3,650
Deferred tax iabilty arising on convertible notes RUAREEMELNEEHEAR - - - (639) - - - - - - (639) - (639)
Dividend relating to 2006 final dividend BE-ZE ERERERKE - - - - - - - - - (1% (713 - (113%)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders 2R ERENRE - - - - - - - - - - - (1,600)  (1,600)
Proposed final divicend BiREke = = = = = = = - (11283) 11283 = = =
Balance at 31 December 2007 RESBLETA=T-BOER 11283 436718 13,760 3011 89,936 73% 21123 16713 139,104 1128 756326 087 847183
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

Minority
interests Total
Equity atributable to equity holders of the Company HEBRR
FATREREARLES s @it
Hotel
propery,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment
Share Share option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained  Proposed
capital  premium  reserves  reserves  reseve  reserve  feserve  reserve profits  dividend Total
TER EEE
HhE 28 BELRE
Kx  ROEE B REEE ARG EARE  EXRE IERE RERA  RERS &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén Tz  FEx  TEx  TEx  TEr  TEr  TExr  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEx  TEn
Balance at 31 December 2007 and RoBRLET-A=1-BR
1 January 2008 \E-A-Biis 11283 43,718 13760 3011 8993%6  73% 27123 16713 139,104 11283 756326 90857 847,183
Net income recognised directly in equity ]
- Translation - - - - - - 31338 - - - 3138 16450 47788
— Share of associate’'s translation - - - - - - 880 - - - 880 - 880
- Share of assoclate’s hotel property -EEBENTEENE
revaluation deficit Ei - = = = - (269) - - - - (269) - (269)
Loss for the year | = = = = = - - - (3322 - (32%) (1279%) (46,021)
Total recognised income and expense TEEREDMNBUA
for the year REx - - - - - (269) 40168 - (3322%) - 6614 3654 1038
Transfer Eer - - - - - - - 565 (311) - 204 (254) -
Share of associate's statutory reserve il N - - - - - - - 230 2230 - - - -
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder  —ESHBA M) 8fkE
of a subsidiary & - - - - - - - - - - -3’ 3IW
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition ¥ BRE & E RHERE
of loans from minority shareholders ET0n BESE - - - - - - - - - - - 4B 4%
Employee share based compensation MR HGES M
(note 29) (Hi9) - - 4008 - - - - - - - 4008 - 4008
Dividend relating to 2007 final dividend BE-ZRLERBRENRS - - - = = = - - (89 (11,283) (11,372) - (11372
Dividend paid to minority shareholders BRPERENRE - - - - - - - - - - - (12141) (12,141)
Arising from issue of ordinary shares on R L AR
exercise of share options (note 28 (¢)) MEE(H228e) 345 11218 (1,750) - - - - - - - 9813 - 9813
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-BBNE+-A=t-BHE% 11628 447936 16018 3011 89936 7,126 67291 19508 103,249 - 765703 89,652 855355
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and Room 2301, 23/F, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15.

The financial statements on pages 40 to 114 have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). The financial statements include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 were
approved by the directors on 21 April 2009.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

In current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as
the “Group”) have applied, for the first time, the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by HKICPA,
which are effective for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2008.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is
required.

B ISR B AL
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RRABROREBMAE R ZHMAR DR (B2 ])E
RETM °

AAQRGFEMBEERE R EE & 25 Bl &Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands & &8 & T &
TITE77-79% = BAE231E2301 F -

RABNEERZBRHIREER - HBARNEEER
BUPHRELS -

FHNFIOE1ABMFBRR DB BB AN BREE
A(MEEFBHREER DR - WIS - 8FEE
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ERUBMEER  BEGHEARRE - MK
BREBRAES EMRUEREERE  AREE
NAMEDIE R R -

BE_ZT)N\F+-A=T—BIFENRBKRRE
BEERN_ZTNFHA-—+—HBE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (Cont'd)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has
not yet early adopted the following new and amended HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) and

HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) — Int9
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17
HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

Various

Notes:

N o oo s e N e

Presentation of Financial Statements !

Borrowing Costs !

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements 3

Puttable Financial Statements and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation !

Financial Instruments : Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded Derivatives 2

Eligible Hedged Items 3

First-time Adoption of HKFRS 3

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or an Associate !

Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations !

Business Combinations and Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements 3

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments !

Operating Segments !

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 2

Customer Loyalty Programmes 4

Agreements for Construction of
Real Estate !

Hedges of Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation 5

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners 3

Transfer of Assets from Customers ©

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 7

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Effective for transfer received on or after 1 July 2009

Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRSs

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” is expected to
materially change the presentation of the Group’s financial statements.
This amendment affects the presentation of owner’s changes in equity
and introduces a statement of comprehensive income. The Group
will have the option of presenting items of income and expenses and
components of other comprehensive income either in a single statement
of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two separate statements
(a separate income statement followed by a statement of comprehensive
income). This amendment does not affect the financial position or results
of the Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008

ZEEN\F+ A=+ —-HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” may result in new or amended
disclosures. The directors are in the process of identifying reportable
operating segments as defined in HKFRS 8.

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” requires capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. The option
of immediately expensing those borrowing costs, which is the accounting
policy adopted by the Group in these financial statements, will be
removed. In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
shall apply HKAS 23 (Revised) on a prospective basis to borrowing
costs relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009. In this regard, all borrowing
costs directly attributable to the property development will be capitalised
for property development project commenced since 1 January 2009, the
directors are in the process to evaluate the impact on the Group’s results
and financial position.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of other new and
amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the directors have
preliminarily concluded that the initial application of these HKFRSs is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the significant accounting policies set out below. The financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the revaluation of investment properties, hotel properties
and certain financial assets and liabilities which are stated at
fair values. The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

(b)  Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December each year.

2.

B ISR B AL

R REETE BB REZER
(%)

BRI E LR ESR LB DL T B K
LI WBEE - ER AR B BMBIRELELE
SHRFTAEM A 2REENEE -

BE AR E 235 (ISR [ EERA IR E KR
I S ELI%E%E%EEE%*HEQE’M%EERZK%LX
BARE - SR EEERA(REER L EHH

iﬁ%?ﬂﬁﬂ%fﬁﬂﬁ SRR BE BRI EAUE - RE

BEMG - AEEEHEN -_EEAF-A—H%
MR RERE R BB & st R FE 235k (ER]) - EAME
BEREENEREERE - gt 5 - MEZERE
EHANMERERET B —Z2ThF—H—Hi

FIGMYIRERIAR TIEARL  EFTANEEHA
SEXERPBARRANTE -

EEH AN EREREMI ] REETREM
BREENNFZE - AR  EFENVTE®
5 BRERAZSE BB RELR TR RS
B EE R BRRENERTE

TESHBREHE
() WEEE

MR BRKRTIARE T X AE A E 2 &5 BERR

B o BIEMRTIRE LR AERIRE - LA
AREEMAENRENE  BEMERETS
BMEENBBENEMELER - A EREFR
NI XEFBEF °

WATE  MENBREFHRAT SHEF R
BRER - Lm%.Jltgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiilﬁkmﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ%
RATBR&EMRE R A MEL - BR&RA
BB SRR - 5 RS2 IR e
MEERRE  RR NG HUBRETNEFE
EEBIANIEAEE -

() HREEE

EUBBREBFARAREMNBRREES
¢+_ﬂf+ B ROBI TSR -

FERERARAT —BT/\GER 49



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits
from their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are excluded from consolidation from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations (other than for combining entities under
common control) are accounted for by applying the purchase
method. This involves the revaluation at fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether or not
they were recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary
prior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance sheet at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or loss and net
assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests that are not
owned by the Group and are not the Group’s financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance
sheet within equity, separately from the equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company. Profit or loss attributable to the
minority interests are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the Group’s results. Where
losses applicable to the minority exceeds the minority interests in
the subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses applicable
to the minority are allocated against the minority interest to the
extend that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the
losses are charged against the Group’s interests. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, such profits are allocated to the
minority interest only after the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert
significant influence, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture. In consolidated
financial statements, investment in associates is initially
recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equity method, the Group’s interest
in the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the associate’s net
assets less any identified impairment loss unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The consolidated income statement includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate for the year, including any impairment loss on goodwill
relating to the investment in associate recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group'’s interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (note 3(p)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination is recognised immediately
in the income statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount
of gain or loss on disposal.
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B ISR AR B AL

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings 2% — 5%
Leasehold improvements 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Operating and office equipment 5% — 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Hotel properties Period of the lease terms
The assets’ depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel properties,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other cost, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Hotel properties held by an associate of the Group are
stated at valuation determined by external professional
valuers less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Changes in the value of hotel properties are dealt with as
movements in the hotel property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the consolidated income statement.

When assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting
from their disposal, being the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets,
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. Any
revaluation surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained profits on the disposal of hotel properties and
certain buildings have been transferred as investment
properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(g)

(h)

()

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both is classified as investment property. When
the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it
were held under a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value. Fair
value is determined by external professional valuers, with sufficient
experience with respect to both the location and the nature of
the investment properties. The carrying amounts recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the balance sheet date.

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in fair value or the
sale of investment properties is immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the period in which they arise.

Properties held under development

Properties held under development for future sale are included
in current assets and comprise land held under operating lease
(note 3(j)(ii)) and aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other expenses (“Development costs”).
Development costs are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less any impairment losses. Other expenses
included (i) those costs that are incurred in bringing the properties
held under development to their present location and condition
and (ii) a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that are incurred
on development of properties. Fixed overheads are indirect costs
which remain relatively constant regardless of the size or volume
of the development.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated selling expenses.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses.

The cost of properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the properties to their present location and condition.
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B ISR AR B AL

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

()]

(k)

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

Leasehold interest in land is up-front payments to acquire
the land use rights. The payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the up-front payments over the lease terms.

Leasehold interest in land included in properties held
under development and properties held for sale, of which
the amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as
part of the building costs during the development period
but charged to the consolidated income statement for
completed properties.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included
in investment properties in the consolidated balance sheet.
The recognition of rental income is set out in note 3(u).

(ii)  Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Inventories
Inventories comprise consumable stores for own consumption

which are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

U}

Financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are available-for-sale financial
asset, loans and receivables and cash at banks. Management
determines the classification of the financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred. At each balance sheet date, financial assets
are reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is
determined and recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.

Availahle-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale financial asset include non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated to this category or do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial
assets. All financial assets within this category is subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising form a change in
the fair value excluding any dividend and interest income is
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in equity would be recognised in the
income statement. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement. Upon disposal,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statement.

The Group designated the shareholder’s loan relating to an
unlisted investment as available-for-sale financial asset as the
Group intends to capitalise the shareholder’s loan as further
investment in this investment.

Available-for-sale investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition.
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B ISR AR B AL

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

0}

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial asset (Cont'd)

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial
asset has been recognised directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income statement.

Reversals of impairment losses in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognised
in the income statement. The subsequent increase in fair value
is recognised directly in equity. Impairment losses in respect
of investment in debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in the
income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

At each balance sheet date, loans and receivables are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised.

A provision for impairment on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the loans and receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the loans
and receivables are impaired. If there is objective evidence that
an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

U}

(m)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Loans and receivables (Cont'd)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement of
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Where the recovery of accounts receivable is considered doubtful
but not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery of accounts receivable is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account in respect
of that receivable are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(m)  Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Cont'd)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have functional currencies different from the
presentation currency of the Group are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(2) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(3) goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as
assets or liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
into the presentation currency, at the closing date.

All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(n)

(0)

Income tax
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the balance
sheet date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based
on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets
or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the
income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
the income statement, or in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited directly to equity.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand

less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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B ISR AR B AL

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(p)

Impairment of assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money and
the rise specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow independently
(i.e. cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods including impairment losses recognised in an interim
period. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(q)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include borrowings, accounts and other
payables, deposits received and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised as an expense in finance costs in
the income statement. A financial liability is derecognised when
the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Accounts and other payables and deposits received

Accounts and other payables and deposits received are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes that contain an equity component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

Convertible note issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible note and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the call option
for conversion of the note into equity, is included in equity as
convertible note equity reserves.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(q)

(r)

Financial liahilities (Cont'd)
Convertible notes that contain an equity component (Cont'd)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component will
remain in equity until conversion or redemption of the note.

When the note is converted, the convertible note equity reserves
and the carrying value of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed,
the convertible note equity reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within financial guarantee contracts. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable for a financial guarantee
issued to lender in respect of borrowing to a third party, an
immediate expense is recognised in the income statement on
initial recognition of any deferred income. Where no consideration
is received or receivable for financial guarantee issued by the
Company to lenders in respect of borrowings to its subsidiaries,
the amount is recognised in investments in subsidiaries as
deemed capital contribution from the Company on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantee issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
or the Company under the guarantee and the amount of that
claim on the Group or the Company is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

3. FESHERBE®

(q)

(r)

ERAHEE)
BIEEES I T RR R (E

BERD ERERERNTRIZHHK AT
iR - RO BEERERERA - BB
FERZEERIE

SRR - AR R R R A B
7 BRE BN EHRR B AR AR E - 1F
RETROORE - MEBRER - AR5
EREGRBERBARE RN -

B HH AR SRR

MBREFREOBABEESAREZEB LA
YRR AN ERS BREF - BT A (REBERA)FE XA
BEESRTHEANBERMERBRNA
# e

HAREKARRRELHBER - ZERD
AR BEKVNERSBHEEREHRAEL
WA o fiFE 2 % FE RIS UL ER B AT MR (R (B -
ZRBEARBERARZEEERN AR BEHRAE
R o WFER T E =77 FERAE E IR
(RICEEAE AT E MRS FEUER(RME - R R AR
ERBRIEU AR - BB S R IR R AFERR -
AR B FER T EMB AR MR ERAE D
B A TR R B E R R ((E - &
BN S ERE R AR (EAR R FEY
HE - RIERRRIRE TR -

RHERRRTER AN ER B RERE RN
Weas R AEE R AT BRI SRR < it
Sh - REREEE AR RERIZERERAASEE
SARNTHREAR - MZEAAEEEART
RO RRERBEREREE (&Y
RN SR #H(EMm)) - BIFER
1 o

62

New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(s)  Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee share-based payment compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised
as an expense in consolidated income statement with a
corresponding increase in share option reserves in equity.
If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of share
options expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately are
vested than originally estimated.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserves will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserves will
be transferred to retained profits.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(s)

()

(u)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(iii)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which are available
to its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme by the Group and employees are calculated as
percentages of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to the consolidated income
statement represents contributions payable by the Group to
the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group
has participated in a local municipal government retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”), whereby the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of basic salaries
of its employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of a subsidiary in the PRC.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Scheme
is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. The Group’s contributions to the
Schemes are expensed as incurred.

The assets of the MPF Scheme and the Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value shares that have been
issued. Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related income
tax benefits) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties held for sale have been transferred to the purchasers
and the Group retains neither continuing involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over properties held for sale. The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of possession of properties
to the purchaser when the property hand-over confirmation
is executed by the Group and the purchaser. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage and pre-
sale are included in current liabilities and are not recognised as
revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
as revenue in the consolidated income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
terms. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the period in which they are earned.

Dividend income is recognised as revenue when the right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised as revenue on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party:

- controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group;

- has an interest in the Company that gives it
significant influence over the Group;

- has joint control over the Group;
(i) the party is an associate;
(i) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(iv)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

(v)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(x)  Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as
the primary reporting format and geographical segments as the
secondary reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated costs
represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily
of investment properties, deferred tax assets, properties held
under development, properties held for sale, inventories, accounts
receivable, deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash at banks and in hand, and
exclude unallocated corporate assets. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as provision for tax,
certain corporate borrowings and convertible notes.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and fair value adjustments on
investment properties.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue is based on
the country in which the customer is located and total assets and
capital expenditure are where the assets are located.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated at
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3(g). The fair value of the investment properties
are determined by a firm of independently qualified
professional surveyors and the fair value of investment
properties as at respective year end are set out in note 14.
Such valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results.

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Cont’d)

(a)  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Estimated fair value of investment properties (Cont'd)

In making the judgement, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet dates and appropriate
capitalisation rates. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions entered into
by the Group.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3(p). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating unit have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates. Details of the assumption used are set out in
note 12.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market survey reports available from independent qualified
professional surveyors, and internal estimates of costs
based on quotes by suppliers.

Management’s assessment of net realisable value of
properties held under development requires the application
of a risk-adjusted discount rate to estimate future
discounted cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates requires judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales) and the expected costs to completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group’s management assesses the collectability of
accounts receivable. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the Group’s customers and the current market
condition.

Management reassesses the impairment provision at each
balance sheet date.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Cont’d)

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

(i)

(ii)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale during the year as disclosed in note 5. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to a buyer requires
examination of the circumstances of the transaction. In
most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing
of possession to the buyer. The Group believes that
its recognition basis of sales as set out in note 3(u) is
appropriate and is in line with the current practice adopted
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision of tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in periods in which such determination are
made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement of
this tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of
the PRC, and the Group has not finalised for certain its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax authorities in
the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount on the appreciation of land
value and its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT
based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

During the year, the Group incurred LAT of approximately
HK$788,000 (2007: HK$7,918,000) which was charged
to the consolidated income statement as taxation.
The directors considered the amount charged to the
consolidated income statement to be adequate as this is
calculated according to the method which is in compliance
with the existing rules and interpretation of LAT.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. W&ERHEMBA
Revenue, which includes the Group’s turnover and other income WS BIEAREENAEEHERNESERB N EMURA
recognised during the year are as follows: 25T
Group
REE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue Wz
Turnover e
Proceeds from sale of properties held for sale HeEFEYERSRIEA 76,948 175,679
Rental income el A 14,767 8,381
91,715 184,560
Other income Hig A
Gain on partial disposal of interests in subsidiaries £ ¥} BB /A 738D a5 KU ZS - 22,204
Interest income T EW A 2,624 7,104
Exchange gain, net Rl ErpEs-] 225 1,078
Others HAith 933 632
3,782 31,018
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(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 6. 7HER-£H
Primary reporting format — business segments (a) TEREHX—LKEHI
The Group is organised into two main business segments: NEBESED ARBETEDE
Property development Property development and YR IR 7 E 23 ek
sale of properties held et
for sale
Property investment and leasing : Property rental and sale of WEITEREE PERLREE
investment properties =L
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. SRS ERE R TESE -
2008
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
MERE
MEER kREE EE] wEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FE T T T FH T
Revenue: W25 -
External customers INREE 76,948 14,767 - 91,715
Inter-segment sales D ESESHE - 255 (255) —
Total segment revenue 7 BB 4N 25 76,948 15,022 (255) 91,715
Segment results DEBEELE 9,785 (7,257) - 2,528
Other corporate income Hi AT A 3,782
Unallocated expenses ROBEFS (50,290)
Finance costs & RN (25,955)
Share of results of associates i3 NE e 23,831
Loss before taxation BRFH A ET1E (46,104)
Taxation HIE 83
Loss for the year FEEE (46,021)
Segment assets DEPEE 834,295 333,142 = 1,167,437
Unallocated assets APEEE 268,481
Total assets HEE 1,435,918
Segment liabilities HEAE 369,113 72,367 - 441,480
Unallocated liabilities r*oMRaE 139,083
Total liabilities wnats 580,563
Other segment items: HihnEBIEE -
Capital expenditure BEARRY
— Unallocated —AxPH 14,551
Depreciation e
— Unallocated vl 37546
Fair value adjustments on KEMEN AR EBE
investment properties R - (15,266) - (15,266)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION — GROUP (Contd) 6. 7HERN-KE®)
(a)  Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont'd) (a) IEREHFR-EBOI(E)
2007
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
LIES3 8=
L ES KEE 45 1RET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FAEIT
Revenue: Wz
External customers INREE 175,679 8,881 - 184,560
Inter-segment sales D EBFEHE = 50 (50) =
Total segment revenue D EbiEU S 175,679 8,931 (50) 184,560
Other income EAUgA = 14,058 = 14,058
Total revenue Al 175,679 22,989 (50) 198,618
Segment results HEBELE 50,222 20,769 - 70,991
Other corporate income Hib A TUWA 31,018
Unallocated expenses APOERAX (48,724)
Finance costs BhE Ak K (12,975)
Share of results of associates i NS 21,417
Profit before taxation FrES BT & F 61,727
Taxation 18 (16,162)
Profit for the year FERAF 45 565
Segment assets DEBEE 628,622 388,255 = 1,016,877
Unallocated assets ROMEE 312,766
Total assets BEE 1,329,643
Segment liabilities DEPEE 244,894 115,133 = 360,027
Unallocated liabilities AOEAE 122,433
Total liabilities BEE 482,460
Other segment items: HibHEIEAE -
Capital expenditure BEARRY
— Segment -8 - 98,827 - 98,827
— Unallocated —AOHE 5,677
104,504
Depreciation e
— Unallocated RO 2,392
Fair value adjustments on REMENRAEE
investment properties T - 14,058 - 14,058
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-_ZZ)\E+_A=1T—RHILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION — GROUP (Cont'd) PEER-KE®)
(b)  Secondary reporting format — geographical segments (b)) REFREAR-—#EHLY
No geographical segments information is presented as the ARAREENER - TERXEREAEAZMUR
operations, major customers and assets of the Group are FRER - A 2 51 i ZRE R -
substantially located in the PRC.
7. FINANCE COSTS g R
Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest charges on borrowings which are BRAFERNEER
repayable within five years: BENESERA :
Bank loans RITER 10,160 7,763
Bank overdrafts RITIE X 123 465
Other loan HER 536 73
Imputed interest expense on loans from DHIRERE R ERT
minority shareholders FERX 6,783 3,741
17,602 12,042
Interest charges on borrowings which are ERAFREEN
repayable after five years: BEEFEEA :
Bank loans IRITER 3,873 =
Interest charge on convertible notes B E GRS -] 4,480 933
25,955 12,975
72 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Financial Statements
e B ISR R M EE

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRBAI(ER) BF
Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAEIT
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at BREGAT (E518) /B AT AR
after charging: TF&IF :
Cost of properties held for sale recognised ERERIHNEES
as expense LI ES)WiN 64,365 117,028
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BMEREEITE 3,546 2,392
Less: amount capitalised in properties held W BRBERPYEER
under development HEEE (70) (10)
3,476 2,382
Outgoings in respect of investment properties BREARNFRNELEHRESWAZ
that generated rental income during the year HEWMENFAT 3,836 1,573
Operating lease charges in respect of land BRI REFHLERE
and buildings &M 2,223 1,782
Auditors’ remuneration ZE M S 1,180 1,150
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments EIRAN(BEESEHS
(note 33(a)) and retirement benefits cost (B15%33(a)) FORIREF &) 28,431 30,306
Employee share-based payment expense AR HEERY
(note 29) (B1:329) 4,008 6,132
Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BRERPYEEARN
under development ESEEE] (7,344) (8,352)
25,095 28,086
Amount recognised as expense for retirement TR ARIKEFIK AR 2R
benefits cost 1,763 1,589
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE « BEMRENEE
and equipment 23 =
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMENEE
(note (a)) (Hiz(a)) 1,247
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e ROR R E RS 1R 2,503
Fair value adjustments on investment properties &M ZEN A K BEFE
(note (a)) (Hiit(a)) 15,266 -
and crediting: WEETA :
Exchange gain, net P& S F 58 225 1,078
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEKRE
and equipment ey = 6
Fair value adjustments on investment properties — REMZEN A R BEFE
(note (a)) (f13#(a)) = 14,058
Note: HiaE -
(a)  The amounts are included in “Other operating (expense)/income” on the (a) ZESFA ARSI EMEEFESL) WAIA -

face of the consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

TAXATION 9. HIE
Group
AEE
2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FHET T
Current tax — the PRC BENERB 18 —
— Corporate income tax —EMEH (a) 1,835 12,637
- LAT — T I ER (b) 788 7918
- Tax refund — iR (c) - (6,207)
2,623 14,348
Deferred taxation (note 18) EEBE(A£18) (2,706) 1,814
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FERMIB(ER), BRHEEE (83) 16,162
Notes: Hiat -
(@)  The 5th Session of the 10th National People’s Congress approved the (@ FETEZEARRRAREEAAGHENR_TTLF=
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Corporate Income AT RB@BTHECEMFRE(HEEMSR
Tax Law”) on 16 March 2007. According to the New Corporate Income AL o MBI EAMGRUE - RERINEDESE
Tax Law, the income tax rates for both domestic-invested and foreign- RFE—HR25% BT NE—A—BEEK -
invested enterprises have been unified at 25% become effective from 1 It AEBURPREOHBARIB=-ZTNEF—A
January 2008. The Group’s subsidiaries located in the PRC were subject —Hi - BIRSAMB RGN EMET (=TT
to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% commenced on 1 January 2008 F :33%) °
(2007: 33%).
(b)  Under the Provisional Rules on LAT Implementation Rules of the PRC (b) RER—NANAF—AZ+EBERAPE L HIEE

(c)

implemented on 27 January 1995, all gains from the sales or transfer of
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC are subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including all finance costs and all property development
expenditures. There are certain exemptions available for the sale of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the
total deductible items (as defined in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of
commercial properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

According to approval documents dated 25 December 2007 issued
by NS EMEZMEBRRIE B, New Heritage Development
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, received amounts of approximately
RMB6,027,000 during the year ended 31 December 2007. The amount
represented tax refund obtained by New Heritage Development Limited
under the reinvestment tax refund scheme in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which includes the reduction in the profits tax

rate fi

rom 17.5% to 16.5% with effect from the year of assessment

2008/2009. No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group

had n

o0 estimated assessable profit for the year (2007: Nil).

(c)

BETIROIERAER - FREREEERZNT RN L
e A - BT RAAR R ESH WS - DREM
THIERER - BRI ER (AN E M EER
FURFIHR S - BIEMERERARAENEER
RSO AREREE - B30%E60% T - fHE—R
EEYEAEE TR - HEEERET BB NRER
B (E%& R A BEBOR) BEM20% - HERAME
TRESHE -

BREFMSMBENEXRERRBBERR T LF
T A TARBELMIEX - ARENKE A B
BRABRARNRBE_ZZLF T A=1t—HLF
R % A R¥6,027,000TCHIFRIE © ZERIBTIR
BEHEMEBERER  MEEREBRARREERE
BB I SRR o

RIZZEZNFRAZ+RE  BELEERIE2008

FWAGHIES -

B EESNEHRERLT.5%MEE

£165% A-ZTN\/“ETNRBREFEER - A
WAREERARF W BT hETERBIER] - Stk
BEREREENSHERER(CTRLF 8 -
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HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

10.

TAXATION (Cont'd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit at

applicable tax rates is as follows:

B ISR B AL

BIR(4#)

PR EIRE AR R EA S (H1R), BRI
(I

Group
AEHE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(E51R) BT (46,104) 61,727
Tax on (loss)/profit before taxation, HERRKEERANERY
calculated at the rates applicable in the tax FRTERRFLRI
jurisdiction concerned (E18),/ BF8FE (10,028) 19,683
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR RS2 8,035 3,844
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRI S ERE (3,279) (6,742)
Tax effect of lower tax rate used for SR AR RIELERIBA =
the recognition of deferred tax FrEARTGE 2R = (3,277)
Tax effect of temporary difference arising from R IR B FFEFOF B Y R = 58
withholding tax for undistributable profits FIEANTH T2 1,567 -
Tax refund IRFT - (6,207)
LAT charge T ER S 788 7,918
Others Hih 2,834 943
Total taxation (credit)/charge BIBER) BREE (83) 16,162
DIVIDENDS 10. &
(a)  Dividends attributable to the year: (a) MAEAFERERE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Proposed 2007 final dividend of 1 HK cent ##k = ZZ -+ FREIIZ 2
per ordinary share R A% 1S = 11,283

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date, but

reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year.

(b)  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved and

paid during the year:

EERRNEIRCR IR BRI AR NEE B RS
BE  BERIHEERFENREANDIK -

(b) FABHERIMNEBERBEERERES

Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FIT
2007 Final dividend T EFERARE 11,372 =
2006 Final dividend ZETRNFRERE = AISS
11,372 7,135
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11.

12.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss/earnings per share is based on the
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$33,225,000 (2007: profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$36,115,000) and on weighted average of
1,141,162,357 (2007: 866,334,121) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

No diluted loss per share is calculated for the year ended
31 December 2008 since the potential shares arising from the conversion
of the Company’s convertible notes and the effect of share options issued
would decrease the loss per share attributable to equity holders of the
Company and were not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect.

In the calculation of the diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007, the
potential shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible
notes would increase the earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company and was not taken into account as they had an
anti-dilutive effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable
to equity holders of the Company is based on the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$36,115,000 and on
weighted average of 866,882,894 ordinary shares outstanding during
the year ended 31 December 2007, being the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 866,334,121 used in basic earnings per share
calculation adjusted for the effect of share options issued of 548,773.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

1. BROUEE) &R

SRR AR, BRI RAD VR ARIE
184733,225, 0008 7T (~ B BLF | AR AREFHA
NREfE 1436, 115,000 70) B 4F OB 84T 28R
1,141,162,357 18 (ZZTZ+4F : 866,334,121 /%) 690
ETEBEA -

B AR A B AT A SRR E A BB AR D R B T
BRENTZESRIARAERFE ARGERE
B BRAREESVEMUEZREA - FbW &
EHE_TTN\FT_A=1+—HULFEEREEE

B

HERE-_ETHE T _A=+—HIFENEAT
BEFEEARGEBRESAENE  HBAQF AR
BEREENBERDESEINARRERHE AR
HERET  BEREERMAREETE QI EE
BEA - Al © AR EEREHE ARLSREERT
AN RSB ARG E R 436,115,000 7T &
BHE-ZZTHF+ A=+ HIFEDHETLER
866,882,894 M MNEFHHETE - BB ARB &7
IR AR D48, 7730 M MM st B TR E A B TR
PR 38 A% 866,334, 121 IR Y iNkE 1984 ©

GOODWILL 12. B8
Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Gross amount Fabe]
Balance at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEFt+-—A=+—H#&H% 37,048 37,048

The goodwill at 31 December 2008 comprises mainly goodwill
arising from the acquisition of New Heritage Investments Limited of
approximately HK$33,672,000 in 2005.

The recoverable amount for the cash-generating units, the underlying
hotel and property operations, in relation to New Heritage Investments
Limited was determined based on value-in-use calculations, covering a
detailed 12-year budget plan (note*) discounted at a rate of 5.94% (2007:
7.83%).

* The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections based on a five
year projection of the relevant cash-generating unit with a growth rate of
9% (2007: 11%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
assuming a nil growth rate.

The management’s key assumptions for the Group have been
determined based on past performance and their expectations for
the market development. The weighted average growth rate used is
consistent with the growth rate of Gross Domestic Products Index in the
PRC. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the relevant cash-generating unit.

RIZEZENF+-_A=+—HBNBFEEXEB/ER
—EERFUBHECEERAREENEEDY
33,672,000/ 7T °

BRFEO L ERARNRSELSER - AREERY
SRR TR SRR EENE - RS
12 BRTEE 2 (52 ) bA5.94% (= ZF+4 :7.83%)
FREHY -

* EREEEEERAERRSEEBMMAFRA
REENBESRERA  TIRAFAERERI%
(ZZTLF : 11%):tE - AFHRAURNESRE
AR R RN BRRETE

EREHALRENEIZRRNVBEEEBERRLE
EEHTISERAIERETE o FEMRIE TS
R E BB EERERE UL R RBHE - FifE
TR R AHATIL <R T AR IR EA BN A
R EER
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B ISR B AL

12. GOODWILL (Contd) 12. BE#E)
Management also believes that any reasonably possible change in the BRETAE - FERSPEMERAIKE S E A
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not REEH T SEY N ERAERBE A NEESEE -
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.
Apart from the considerations described above in determining the value %L?ﬁ%@ﬁ@%iﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@%%%ﬁl\ CE
in use of the cash-generating units, the management is not currently 2 A A3 AR E A FT Re B By TR EL PR
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in FERBRHIEN
their key assumptions.
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 13. % - BEERRXE FEH
Operating
Leasehold Motor and office Furniture
Buildings improvements vehicles equipment  and fixtures Total
e EER F
BF L1 RE BAERE R#EE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET FExT FET FExT T
At 1 January 2007 R-BTLE
—HA—H
Cost AN 11,938 2,629 1,975 5,497 1,144 23,183
Accumulated depreciation Z25IE (2,707) (949) (1,508) (2,194) (383) (7,741)
Net book amount BREEER 9,231 1,680 467 3,303 761 15,442
Net book value IREFE
At 1 January 2007 RIBZ+F 9,231 1,680 467 3,303 761 15,442
—HA—H
Additions NE - 3,595 704 756 622 5,677
Disposals k= = - (125) (5) (4) (134)
Revaluation upon transfer R EIE
to investment properties YR B, 2,119 = = = = 2,119
Transfer to investment ERIREYE
properties (note 14) (Ki7#14) (4,045) - = - - (4,045)
Depreciation £ (232) (855) (189) (861) (255) (2,392)
Exchange differences b ZERE 521 144 24 226 20 935
At 31 December 2007 R-BELE 7,594 4,564 881 3,419 1,144 17,602
+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZLF
+=A=+—H
Cost D% 9,957 6,409 2,559 6,657 1,795 27,377
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (2,363) (1,845) (1,678) (3,238) (651) (9,775)
Net book amount BREF R 7,594 4,564 881 3,419 1,144 17,602
Net book value BREFE
At 1 January 2008 RZZETNF 7,594 4,564 881 3,419 1,144 17,602
—HA—H
Additions NE 10,129 2,895 125 357 1,045 14,551
Disposals k== = (66) (18) (14) (38) (136)
Depreciation e (373) (1,560) (243) (916) (454) (3,546)
Exchange differences PE H ZERE 55 311 31 242 53 1,194
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENF
+=H=+—H8 17,907 6,144 776 3,088 1,750 29,665
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENF
+=A=+—AH
Cost A 20,830 9,626 2,653 7,500 2,846 43,455
Accumulated depreciation 25tiInE (2,923) (3,482) (1,877) (4,412) (1,096) (13,790)
Net bhook amount BRI SRR 17,907 6,144 776 3,088 1,750 29,665
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HE_ZTN\F+_RA=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (Cont'd) 13. 9% - BERRE—FTEE(2)
Depreciation expenses have been included in: MERSBEETYISE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Consolidated balance sheet mEBEEAGEK
— capitalised in properties held —BREEPME
under development BN 70 10
Consolidated income statement e WER
— cost of sales — SHERA 219 62
— administrative expenses —1TE R 3,257 2,320
3,546 2,392
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEYZHE
Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BERmEE 310,867 180,475
Additions hE - 98,827
Disposals HeE (6,507) -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEYE  BELEK
(note 13) (B15£13) - 4,045
Fair value adjustments N BEFHE (15,266) 14,058
Exchange differences ME N =5 22,660 13,462
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+_—A=+—HEmE 311,754 310,867
At 31 December 2008, certain investment properties of approximately RZZTEZENF+ZA=+—H ' 139,150,000/ 7T
HK$139,150,000 (2007: HK$129,470,000) were pledged to secure (ZZZT L4 : 129,470,000/8TT) & TR EME
certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)). BFEE - UERAEBEERHNE TRITER (M
26(a)) °
Investment properties included leasehold interests in land located in the Tﬁﬁ%%@%ﬁf%ﬂP Bt Sz - HEHR
PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2065. ZER—FEZTRAFHEER -
The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2008 was ZEREVER_ZT)\F+_A=+—HWRAA
based on the valuation by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), BENDEKEBELAEREXAEMBERTERA
a firm of independent qualified professional surveyors. Valuations were AI(TEERT]) mETHRE - HEDREDER
based on the properties’ open market value on 31 December 2008. ZZET)N\FFT+ZA=+—HHARAMEETE - ZEW
The properties have been valued by direct comparison method by ¥ 2B WS BTG Erl AL BRAEE
making reference to comparable sales evidence as available in the EOIAEELBUEETEE  TREERERMERER
relevant market and where appropriate, by capitalising the net rental RAERONBESBRAFERRSERMERREB L
income derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for the KB S EIET (D B ©
reversionary potential of the respective properties as at the reporting
date.
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES TR X B R R
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RHEBATWIKRE
Company
PN
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted, at cost JEET - BRAE 112,147 111,652
Financial guarantees granted BT B AR SER
to subsidiaries (note 36) (H17£36) 7,251 7,179
119,398 118,831
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited R-BEENF+_A=+—BXTENBRAAI(HAHE
liability company, as at 31 December 2008 are as follows: RARDRFEBWT :
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
HRAL/ BRTRER
REER RItbY LERA/ERER Bk RAER TEEH(EXRY)
Directly Indirectly
E# Gk
New Heritage Corporation Limited British Virgin Islands 347 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
(TRLEARAR) (“BVI") UTREREEIET REER
AERARES
New Heritage Development Limited Hong Kong (“HK") 156 shares of HK$1 each - 90% Investment holding
MEERERAR &b 156 BRARLET REER
New Heritage Investments Limited HK 6,260,000 shares of HK$10 each - 100% Investment holding
TEMEERAR Bk 6,260,000 BFREE107%E 7T RABR
New Heritage (IP) Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Holding of trademark of the Group
ME(ER)ERAA ARGRREE IREREELIET REAKERR
New Heritage Land Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
MEEERAR) 6 IRERAEBLET RABR
New Heritage Management Limited HK 1 share of HKS$1 each - 100% Administration vehicle of the Group
MEEREARAR % IRERAEEIET (Hong Kong)
BEAEETHIME(ER)
New Heritage Properties Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
MENEARRA B IREREBLET RERK
Prosper View Group Limited HK 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 46% Investment holding
BREEERAR &% 10,000k BREELET RAZR
World Margin Limited HK 800,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100% Treasury vehicle of the Group (Hong Kong)
HRARAA i 800,000k BREELET REARENMETH(EE)
Healthy Castle Investments Limited BV 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
RERAERAR ERERERES IREREELIET RA TR

FEEZERARAR —TENFFR
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

BE—F

For the year ended 31 December 2008

ZNF+_A=THILLEE

15. REE L RRER2)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Cont'd) @) HHBARINKRE(ZE)
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
EREL/ BETRAR
NEEB Rt LERE/ZRER EihRAER TEXB(EXLH)
Directly Indirectly
HE ;3
Suzhou Garden Villa Development PRC US$20,550,000 - 86% Properties development and investment
& Management Co., Ltd. e (2007: US$12,150,000) (PRC)
BNGERRRERERERAA 20,550,000% 7T NEERREE (PE)
(ZFZ+4£ 1 12,150,000% )
Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited PRC 1S$26,600,000 - 55% Properties development and investment
BMFAREERAR e 26,600,000%7T (PRC)
NEERREE (E)
Suzhou New Heritage Wuzhong Limited PRC 1US$9,300,000 - 54% Properties development and investment
BN mEEERAR HE 9,300,000% 7 (PRC)
NEERRFE (PE)
Suzhou New Heritage WZA Limited PRC US$5,000,000 - 100% Properties development and investment
MM EERAR) G 5,000,000% 7 (PRC)
NEERREE(PE)
New Heritage WJA Limited” PRC US$31,000,000 - %% Properties development and investment
RTEMEFRARN e 31,000,000%7T (PRC)
MEERRRE (E)
A This subsidiary was established by the Group during the year. A ZMBRARNFENARNEE R -
(b)  Amounts due from subsidiaries () PEURFEE D RIRIE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEFBEHEER - RERBRERIEE -
demand.
16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. BE RATAHNER
Group
AEH
2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FHET FHT
Share of net assets BIEFEE (a) 123,224 111,887
Amounts due from associates FE UGBt & N B R IE (b) 450 572
123,674 112,459
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

17.

Notes:

Notes to the Financial Statements

(a) Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Company name

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

B ISR B AL

16. B¥E QRIS (4)

opza

@ RIEZNF+A=T+—HBEQRANFBNOT

Percentage of
interest held

Principal activities

REER AL B S R S i B fisEEE S EEXK

Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. PRC 30.05% Hotel ownership and property investment
IREHEAREERAF il BEREERYERE

China Malls Limited HK 36% Investment holding

PRI AR A A B BEER

Art Shine Limited HK 40% Investment holding

BB RN A B BB

(b) The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and not repayable within

twelve months from the balance sheet date.

(c) Summarised financial information of associates:

(b) ARFA/EER 28 WIHERAHEREF+E

ARMEE -

() HBEXTMBEMBRAT :

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Revenue s 322,599 287,337
Profit after taxation kel 79,333 67,006
Non-current assets IERENEE 523,219 542,854
Current assets TRENEE 48,164 50,743
Current liabilities TEAaR 134,201 175,267
Non-current liabilities EmBBE 27,132 44,954

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

17. AIEHENEREE

Group

REME
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T FHT

Unlisted equity investment: FEEMRAIEE -

— Equity securities, at cost —BAES - LKA 1 =
— Shareholder’s loan —REER 43,317 -
43,318 -

During the year ended 31 December 2008, a prepayment of

approximately HK$43,318,000 included in deposits paid, prepayments
and other receivables in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2007
(note 23) was converted into 10% equity interest in and a shareholder’s
loan to Key Apex Limited (“KAL"), a company of which Mr. Chan Bernard

Charnwut, a non-executive director of the Company, is a director. KAL

was incorporated in the BVI with a registered share capital of US$1,000.
KAL is an investment holding company and its subsidiary is engaged in

property development project in the PRC.

HE-_ZZ \F+_A=+—AHLFE #HE_ZTZTt
FH+ZA=T—ANBEARRTIAENZRS - B
15 ERTE R L FE IR GRIE M) — ZE TS FRIE 943,318,000
BT (23 ERRABARAFERITEZRE R
SAEEFESEMIEFRAR([EEE])A10% AR A

SLEE A SR 4 B R B S R AR SL - R

A AZ1,000K7T - HER—FHHREZERAF] - &
B ARNH R ERERER
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17.

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET (Cont'd) 17. AMtHENSREE (8)
The shareholder’s loan is capital in nature, non-interest bearing and REERBENEE - B8 NEETERE - AAF]
has no fixed terms of repayment. The directors of the Company intend BEERBZRRERENML AN DE—PNIRE -
to capitalise the shareholder’s loan as further investment in KAL and W ZBRRERBRAAEEENSREE - IR
designated the shareholder’s loan as available-for-sale financial asset HEEFEE - IR ER B EARIREER
shown as non-current. The shareholders’ loans of KAL were provided by AR L BFRAE o
the shareholders of KAL in proportion to their shareholdings.
It is measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date ERE AR EBEETAEGENGERE - BRAsE
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant HIRZBHEER  WHESENSHERIRK AR E
and the probability of various estimates is significant. Accordingly, the WEFE - At - AR ESRAEARBEEEA
directors of the Company are of the opinion that fair value cannot be Sit= o
measured reliably.
DEFERRED TAXATION 18. EEBIE
Deferred taxation is calculated under the balance sheet liability method BERIBOREBEEEABRABIRGEEBINERAR
using the applicable tax rates at balance sheet date. RetE o
The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from temporary TREREEMNECHBEE (BB WEHNT :
differences are as follows:
Group Company
*EE FAH
In respect of
Fair value withholding
adjustments In respect tax for Convertible Convertible
on investment of provision  undistributable  notes equity notes equity
properties for LAT profits reserves Total reserves
REWE BELt AEFUARK  TEREE TRRZE
NAEBERE  BERAE BREOR EifE b bl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x TR T TERL TERL TERL
Balance at 1 January 2007 RZZZ+E-A-BREH (26,782) 2419 = - (24,363) -
Deferred tax charged to equity PER AR AR IE = - - (639) (639) (639)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the NEEZRA (1K) /
income statement (note 9) BEEERRE(E9) (1,210) (663) - 59 (1,814) 5
Exchange differences ERES (2,011) 10 = = (2,001) -
Balance at 31 December 2007 and RZEZHFE+-A=+-8R
1 January 2008 —ZZ\E-R-BREH (30,003) 1,766 = (580) (28317) (580)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the MERRERE
income statement (note 9) (30BR) VBN B8 (729 4,153 = (1,567) 120 2,706 120
Exchange differences ERES 2132) 132 = = (2,000) =
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-BENF+ZA=1+-AWEH (27,982) 1,898 (1,567) (460) (28,111) (460)
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HE-_ZZT)\F+-A=1+—HIEFE
18. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d) 18. IEZEBE &)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding RIBPBEDSERESFHE - RPBEXZINEDERE
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign- IMREE T IR B BIZ10% S NTEFIRL - 1R IEHE
invested enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective BRFMELARR_EENFE A -+ - BEMGHNT
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007 [2008]15: 1+ WRER—_TENF—A—HEE
pursuant to the Caishui [2008] No. 1 dated 22 February 2008 issued B EBARZEELF+ A=+ —HAUEEENR
by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate may R o PR BIBINEEEFER ADAER 2 BT
be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of the ERBEIHTE - B feE AR TEFIR R - giAEH
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group ms @ WEBEAES% Iltt K%I,,\EVLEAEF EilpY
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those VHB AR NEEARREENFE—F—HIUE
subsidiaries and associates established in the PRC in respect of earnings EXNEFIFTD /)fEE!’JHx,%'\?%%W?E?D%R ®
generated from 1 January 2008.
The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for MY HRERNTME  EERIBESROWTHT -
financial reporting purposes:
Group Company
TEE b NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T FHET FAT
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEEE 1,898 1,766 = =
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEAE (30,009) (30,583) (460) (580)
(28,111) (28,817) (460) (580)
The amounts of the deferred tax credit not recognised during the year FRRERIELER B R KEENT ¢
are as follows:
Group
REE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FAETT
Tax effect of temporary differences attributable AR EBERABRNEEZENT S E
to tax losses net of fair value adjustments (IR AR FERBIEER)
not recognised 2,887 1,112
19. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT — GROUP 19. BERPYE-—XEE
Properties held under development included leasehold interests in land ?Ff)?gﬁtﬂ MEBFEMPPEN T A ERZ - FEHh

located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2045 to 2077.

As at 31 December 2008, the carrying value of the leasehold interests in
land amounted to HK$520,597,000 (2007: HK$298,045,000).

As at 31 December 2008, certain leasehold interests in land of
approximately HK$227,700,000 (2007: HK$42,517,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

“ENREFE-TEEFRER

RIZZENF+ZA=+—H8 A EERNERE
18/3520,597,000/8 7L (— T Z L : 298,045,000/8
) ©

RZZBEZENF+ZA=+—H " #227,700,0007#

TT(ZEZTLF : 42517, OOO;%fE)E’]#:Fiiﬂlﬁ%
ERORAEEERNE TRITER T AR (T
26(a)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\F+_RA=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE — GROUP 20. FEYE—FKHE
Properties held for sale included leasehold interests in land located in FEVERRUNTEN T A SR - HEHH
the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2075. “ER—FE_ZTLRFMEEM -
As at 31 December 2008, the carrying value of the leasehold interests in RZEENEFE+ZA=+— EI T ERES AR
land amounted to HK$11,187,000 (2007: HK$1,639,000). E{EA11,187,000%8 L ( Z = ZF+F : 1,639,000/
JT) ©
21. INVENTORIES - GROUP 21. FE-XREH
Inventories represent low value consumables carried at cost. FERENAEARNEKESER °
22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22. EWERR
Group
AEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 149 514
Less: Provision for impairment loss W OREEEEE = -
149 514
Accounts receivable generally have 30 to 60 days’ credit terms and FEMERREESH R A30E0KR LT E ° FTH
no interest is charged. All accounts receivable are denominated in PR TRAAREESHE - AEBEUKERF AR DT
Renminbi. The ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable is as U
follows:
Group
AEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT F&T
Within 30 days 30KAA 112 249
31 - 60 days 31—-60X 37 129
61 - 90 days 61—90X = 50
91 - 365 days 91 —365K = 86
149 514
The carrying amount of accounts receivable is considered a reasonable YRR ERRERR A BRI AREE - BB
approximation of fair value as this financial asset, which is measured at SREEDIREHEKATER - WHERBRNERBHRNSA -
amortised cost, is expected to be paid within a short timescale, such that Eit - WESANESHKBETE -
the time value of money impact is not significant.
At each balance sheet date, the Group’s accounts receivable are REEER - AEE/EKERSERIZEERE - @5
individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired REREBERR (A ) IRIEE R P )1z Atk (et
receivables, if any, are recognised based on the credit history of its MR SRR RIRRTRER - Bt - E#R
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and BERERE FEURRKERENENHSBA - &
current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment provision AHSBERERE - WHEEREHESIRE ARIK
is recognised. The accounts receivable represents rental income from FERM o
leasing properties. Monthly rents are normally received in advance and
sufficient rental deposits are held to minimise credit risk.
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HE—

23.

TENF+A=+—RIEFE

B ISR B AL

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Cont'd) 22. BRERM (&)
Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired are related to B EE I R (E R PR BR SR T PR B AR @ A R AT iR
independent customers that had a good track record with the Group. TRSHBUEP  BIBENALER - BRBREEKER
Based on the past experience, management believed that no impairment D EEEENRAEANE - BEIEER AR IARS
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there had not W El4Es: - MRS B Ak SAMEEIRERE -
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances were
considered fully recoverable.
DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. Eff%EE ~ BAFEREMEWRIIE
Group
AEH
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deposits paid and prepayments B fHe RIB A 9,239 233,872
Other receivables HAth e U 08 27,785 28,963
37,024 262,835
The carrying amounts of deposits paid and other receivables approximate B MEMEBWRIENEREEERE QA EER

to their fair values and those are neither past due nor impaired.

As at 31 December 2007, the deposits paid and prepayments included
the following:

(i)

(ii)

A land premium of approximately HK$137,680,000 was prepaid
for an acquisition of leasehold interests in land located in the PRC.
Such acquisition was completed and this amount together with the
remaining land premium has been transferred to properties held
under development during the year ended 31 December 2008.

On 28 May 2007, the Group entered into a Convertible Note
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement ") with KAL. Pursuant
to the Agreement |, on 18 July 2007 the Group paid to KAL an
amount of US$5,500,000 (the “Principal”) to subscribe for the
Convertible Note (the “Note 1”).

Under the Agreement I:

(@)  The Note | is not transferable and will be mandatorily and
automatically converted into 10% of the enlarged issued
share capital of KAL within three days after the date when
KAL has obtained the land use right certificate of a piece of
land in Jiading District, Shanghai, the PRC.

(b)  If KAL is unable to obtain the land use right before the
maturity of the Note |, the Principal will be repaid in full to
the Group.

The Principal is in substance an interest-free prepayment for the
purpose of investing in an equity interest in a related company
and is therefore classified as “Prepayments”.

On 3 June 2008, this prepayment was converted into 10%
equity interest in and a shareholder’s loan to KAL (note 17) in
accordance with terms and conditions as set out in the Agreement

% BymHsgRE -

R-ZEZT+F+-A=+—8  BEfEERBENFE
FIERAAT

(i)

(ii)

#7137,680,0007% 7T &) 1 b HH 3% & B & AT A
B AATEE SRS - AREWED
K RERARBRTLHEBRCEEREE
E-REN\F+ A=+ HULEFENERSD
(IE

REZBZELFRA-+/\B - REEEY|FAT

TR AR SRR R (f —niE) - BiR
E—iHE  ARER_ZTZELFLA TR

EBEEESENE §E55OOOOO%7E(|—KiJ)
AR A = ([ —H#EE]) -
RIEE— D1

(@) HBHEBETAEE  BRSEEST

B FE 5 E R — R it A it (R A RE
BEHRKR=AR - ARS8 BHER LI E
KIRRBETIRARN1L0%

(b) fHSZERE —HRIEF 2 AT ARG
THERE - AARASEEBREAR

AeBE FRKRE - RHEER RN BRAERDN
S BIRNFIR - BRI B FIR SRR

RIRSE — 00 158 L — MR IR PR EUIRR M A%
f ZEENFEER -_ETZEN\FAA=RHE
BT A 10% A 2t S A8 T OlEE ) — /%

| and the Note I. Further details of this transaction are set out in ?Efﬂ(ﬁﬁ?ﬂ) &tlﬁ X 5 M — ﬁ#lﬁ%@ﬁ
the circular of the Company dated 20 June 2007. APEHBRA-TELF A -THNE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 24. FEfTERRX
The ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts payable is as follows: AREBFEMBRRORESTAOT :
Group
REE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FET T
Within 30 days 30KAA 724 1,110
31 - 60 days 31—60X 245 196
61 — 90 days 61—90X 46 160
91 — 365 days 91 —365K 929 433
Over 365 days 365K E 810 826
Rent received on behalf of landlords REFWENES (a) 2,754 2,725
Accrued construction cost and other FEETEEER AR E AR
project-related expenses AR (b) 53,088 28,356
55,842 31,081
Notes: Hraz -
(@)  Rent received on behalf of landlords comprised net rental received from (@ REFZWERHHESSFERESREEE S HBRINR
tenants after netting off fee charged to them provided by external service T UL RE RS FrUCER B FR 1R BOFT 1S H 58 o
providers.
(b)  Included in the above amounts are construction cost and other project- (b EREEeFER—TRN\F+-A=+—AEMHRE
related expense payable amounted to approximately HK$53,088,000 at AR e BAth 18 B AR RAR S 4953,088,000/8 7T + RIRIE
31 December 2008 which were accrued based on the terms of the relevant HRREGRARIBEEERE R N\F+_H
agreements and the progress of the projects, and were not due for payment =f-A MAEEEZ A (ZT T4 ¢ 28,356,000/
at 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$28,356,000). JT) °
25. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER PAYABLES  25. FEZTEA - EWiIRE R B RIR
Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FAT
Deposits received Bz e 10,769 5,376
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H b FEAT K18 24,364 23,341
35,133 28,717
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26. BORROWINGS 26. (& &
Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Borrowings are included the followings: BEFRMT
— Bank overdrafts —R1TEX 6,488 14,811
— Bank loans —RITER 259,580 188,627
— Other loan —EMER = 9,630
— Loans from minority shareholders — DEIRRER 110,413 86,206
376,481 299,274
Less: Current portion due within one year B S ARBAER—FAEIE
included under current liabilities R ENERER > (82,649) (113,727)
Non-current portion included under HEIEREN A ERFERNEREE 5
non-current liabilities 293,832 185,547
Borrowings were repayable as follows: AEERENT
Group
REE
2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET FHT
Within one year —FR
Bank overdrafts, unsecured RITES - A 6,488 14,811
Bank loans, unsecured IRITER - EIK 64,431 28,000
Bank loans, secured WITET - B (a) 11,730 59,064
Other loan, unsecured B - EIEH - 9,630
Loans from a minority shareholder, —NDERRER
unsecured AR = 2,222
In the second year FERN
Bank loans, unsecured IRITER - EER 6,769 15,000
Bank loans, secured IRITER - HER (a) 5,980 5,564
Loans from minority shareholders, DERRRER
unsecured AR (b) 89,774 -
In the third to fifth year =ZhH%E
Bank loans, unsecured IRITER - KA 6,800 =
Bank loans, secured WITET - B (a) 132,940 80,999
Loans from minority shareholders, DERRER
unsecured FTiigd (b) 20,639 83,984
Borrowings repayable within five years ARAFANEENEE 345,551 299,274
After the fifth year RFLAE
Bank loans, unsecured IRITER - EIE 10,000 -
Bank loans, secured RITER - HEMH (a) 20,930 -
Borrowings repayable after five years AR AFREENEE 30,930 =
376,481 299,274
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26. BORROWINGS (conta)

(a)

(b)

Bank loans were secured by pledge of certain investment
properties and properties held under development of the
Group, bank deposits of approximately HK$6,265,000 (2007:
HK$54,606,000) of the Group and certain properties held by a
related company, Fontwell Holdings Limited (“Fontwell”) (note 34
(b)).

Loans from minority shareholders are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. The principal
amounts of the loans were approximately HK$121,513,000 (2007:
HK$97,613,000). The fair value of the loans was calculated by
reference to a market interest rate (“MIR”) for an equivalent loan.
The fair value of the loans at the grant date was approximately
HK$99,889,000 (2007: HK$80,243,000), which was calculated
using cash flows discounted at MIR of 6.75% per annum. The
residual amount of HK$21,624,000 (2007: HK$17,370,000)
is accounted for as capital contribution from the minority
shareholders and included in minority interests.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies and have the following effective interest rates at the balance

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

26. fEE (%)

(a)

BITERAAEEETREAMERERTY
¥ . KEBE46,2650008 T ( T L F ¢
54,606,000 7 7T ) K 88 1T 17 2 I B8 i 2 7]
Fontwell Holdings Limited ([ Fontwell ) 5 5 &)
=T HEE(H7E34 (b)) 1EAEE o

PEBREFERR O BERER - HRIZE
AL AR - ERAEREA121,513,000% 7T

—ZEZTLF : 97,613,00087T) c ERHIAR
EBESEZESREFNOTSHNER(HHME )
B o RIRH R B E R Q2 EEZ99,889,000
EIL(ZZTTAF : 80,243,000 L) » THiRIE
BenB8RMSNEGFe75EMEHE - &4
#21,624,0008 T (ZZEZ+F : 17,370,000
BBLBERRTEAR T ALER

i

(b)
s -
e

REETATIIES BFHEREMN - REEAS

\

BT

sheet date:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
Interest rate Interest rate
per annum, per annum,
effective as at effective as at
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
R-ZENF RZZET+F
HK$’000 +=—B=+—H HK$'000 +=—A=+—~H
FET KB BR E 7R FAETT B R R R
Hong Kong dollars BIT 126,059 1.20% to 6.50% 68,031 4.29% to 7.25%
United States dollars ETT 78,842 6.75% 75,986 6.75%
Renminbi AREE 171,580 7.01% to 8.69% 155,257 5.56% to 7.01%
376,481 299,274

Borrowings were under floating interest rates.

EETHRF R R -
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a Convertible Notes
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement [1”) with Asia Financial
Holdings Limited (“AFH") and Asia Insurance Company, Limited
(“AICL"). Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut, a non-executive director of the
Company, is a director of AFH and AICL. Pursuant to the Agreement
II, AFH and AICL agreed to acquire the convertible notes (the “Notes
[1”) at HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively, in total of
the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of 5% per
annum, payable in arrear on a quarterly basis on 31 March, 30 June,
30 September and 31 December of each year between the date of issue
of the Notes Il and the maturity date. The maturity date is 60 months
from the date of issue of the Notes II.

The Notes Il are not transferable and will not be allowed for redemption
before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the Company is
obliged to redeem the Notes Il on the maturity date at the redemption
price of 110% of the principal amount of the Notes Il outstanding
together with accrued interest payables.

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH and
HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the Notes Il shall be compulsorily converted
at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days if the
closing price per share of the Company is HK$1.10 or higher for ten
consecutive trading days during the period between the date of issue of
the Notes Il and five business days prior to the maturity date.

In addition, the Notes Il can be converted by the holder into ordinary
shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of the Notes
II'in the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price of HK$1.10
per share, at any time during the period between the date of issue of the
Notes Il and the maturity date.

68,181,818 is the maximum number of ordinary shares that can be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the Notes Il were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
17 August 2007 and 10 September 2007 respectively.

The Notes Il were issued to AFH and AICL on 15 October 2007.

The fair values of the Notes Il were determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by Norton Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values.

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the Notes Il
are as follows:

The fair value of the liability component was calculated based on the
present value contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference
to the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and
remaining time to maturity.

27.

B ISR B AL

RRREE

RZZZLFNATH » RAREGIN SRS (12
BOBRAR([EMEE ) REMNRBRAR DR
MMRER ) ET S AT RIE R B ek ([ — ek ) -
AARIEMTEERE B EEDTME R R TMRR
m%$ RIEE =% DMEREENRERE
5 5l LA 50,000,000% 7t % 25,000,000 7T 52 ﬁ§$ﬁé
#%875,000,000/8 TTHY AT AR IR ([ 56 —#HERIR 1)
FHERFSE - ARE-_MRBEETEHAEIHAH
ME8F=A=+—H8 <A=+H - LA=TEXK
ToA=+—BREXMAHMNE - JHBARAE S
HRIZETT A HEET60MEA -

FEHREBETAEE - WAAEIHARNAAEL - &
ZHIERIES - RRRBEENRBBRREETSE
“HEBASENI0%RERE LN ENAE RED
BELE 5% -

MBEFE-_H#HEERFTEAEIHANREE XA
FEE AR S BN AR R FRROETERLIOE
TESRIA L BIIAR & %8 235,000,00078 7T (T2 M © &l A
25,000,000/ 7T+ ifn a8 MR B2 4 10,000,000/ 7T ) B
FRUFRBANLESEARRGIE]L10BITH K iR
ERT I

SN BB ARRE —HREBEETE B =5 H R 5
B R A1 10 TR LR B ER B D AN
BENFE_HEBABMAARAREBER - LABES
25,000,000 TTEY =81

AR E B LR 568,181,818 -

FERERNERREENE—SFBEIRIREA
E%ﬁf77tiﬂﬂ+t5&f77t¢ﬂﬂ+5
NS RIBHP IR

ERZZZ+F+A+EBREMNEE R IIMNREE
TT%—*H:KH{' °

EHRBENAREBERARRNEFLEEL ;51.[‘5’%.%
HERARMEHNGBEET  EHERFEERA

BT&E%%%@%T%M&%&?&EWE(%E’U?&’ﬁﬁ?}%ﬁﬁ
i ERHEERELUESTAE TANTISEBEESE -

“HERHERARARNIDERRRAT

BES ’&fc1*@%5’\/\”]?‘5&&‘]5&23%%”\.&??
Eziﬂilﬁﬁ}iﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ - BRI R Ak EE
R &S Lok %ﬂi&ﬂ,ﬁﬂ B A RO F R 65 ]

E o
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont'd)

The residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in the equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company in convertible notes equity reserves, net of deferred tax.

The Notes Il recognised in the balance sheet are calculated as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

ARREE (&)

PREATE IR E D B(EE - AT AR IR

B AR RIS ARG EE (RELERE) -

REEABRNERNE _REHRRIOTHRAE

Group and Company

EEBRARAF
HK$'000
FHT
Fair value of convertible notes AR EEN AR EE 75,000
Equity component 25 E D (3,650)
Liability component on initial recognition VB TERN B EZ D 71,350
Interest expense FBEFRX 933
Interest paid BEARIFE (801)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2007 RZZT+FF+A=+—HBR=ZZZNF—HA—H
and 1 January 2008 HBREFE 71,482

Interest expense FERZ 4,480
Interest paid 2FLE (3,750)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2008 R-ZBZENF+-A=+—HANEEEE 72,212

The effective interest rate of the liability component is 6.28% per annum.
Interest expense on the Notes Il is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate to the liability component.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, no convertible notes have
been converted as ordinary shares of the Company.

BREP ‘E’Jfﬁ%‘i%@#@%@ E-HRBHOFR
X DRERNEERE GO UERFRFH - 10
BE_TTN\F+_A=1— EIJJ:¢F 3 45 AT HA A
SRERMARATEBK -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
2008 2007
Number Number
Notes of shares HK$’000 of shares HK$'000
Htat RG 2 FHET IR g E T
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of S EE0.01B T
HK$0.01 each B AR 30,000,000,000 300,000 30,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
Ordinary shares of B EE0.01ABTT
HK$0.01 each B RAR
At 1 January wn—A—H 1,128,264,685 11,283 713,518,218 7,135
Subscription for LB
ordinary shares (a) - - 90,017,210 900
Issue of ordinary shares LAKT RS 5 21T
on bonus issue A (b) - - 14,270,364 143
Issue of ordinary shares BIT_TTNRE
as 2006 scrip dividend ARG AR B @ A% (c) — — 2,750,343 28
Issue of ordinary shares DALRS 75 = 25 1T
upon rights issue EE P& (d) - - 307,708,550 3,077
Issue of ordinary shares on AT B AE M EETT
exercise of share options A (e) 34,545,000 345 = =
At 31 December Rt+t—-_A=+—H 1,162,809,685 11,628 1,128,264,685 11,283
Notes: et
(a) Pursuant to the master transfer agreement dated 17 October 2006, (@ 1’ }gi §2$R i + ﬂj’/\t H &1 3 # @ XHERIE
details of which were described in note 34(a) to this consolidated financial SR 165 74 (5F 18 ﬁm$fb‘f = B 7% & W\ 7L34(a))
statements, 13,380,657 and 42,535,093 ordinary shares of the Company Belbroughton L'm'tﬂj%’%”ﬁéf%%t¢/_\ﬁ E'HL/EJ
were issued to Belbroughton Limited on 29 June 2007 and 31 August 2007 &:?%ti}\ﬂ :nJr* H Bzﬁx%ii(\)&%m?%?éﬁ.
respectively at a price of HK$0.6405 each and 34,101,460 ordinary shares ZK’/} 7113,380,657% £142,535,093/% Eii%ﬂx " TPeeli
of the Company were issued to Peeli Limited on 31 August 2007 at a price Lirr1|ted}}§:§%t¢)\ﬂ :Jrf A 1% %0.640578
of HK$0.6405 each. TUREATARR)34,101,4608% L i@AK o
(b) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting (b) Eﬁéi%‘\%ﬁtﬁz)i:ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁi@@}@ﬁﬁ%@&
held on 1 June 2007, the Company approved a bonus share of 1 ordinary ﬁ* k$’\&ﬁ?|ﬁﬂ@}%m§50ﬁﬁﬁ?§f'r\ TR AT 1R
share per 50 ordinary shares in issue. On 11 June 2007, 14,270,364 'E"@HXVH%@HX ° Fé:%%‘iti/—\ﬂ +fE|7 ' ZjEQ
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued to shareholders of the ?HQ%Z%%WM,WOBMHQHQE{EO.OE%TEE’\J‘E.’@
Company. % -
(c) On 4 July 2007, 2,750,343 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued (©) R_ZTLFLAMAB - ERRREARNA S5 S

(d)

at a price of HK$0.74 per ordinary share upon election by shareholders to
receive ordinary shares in the Company in lieu of the 2006 final dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in a circular dated
4 June 2007.

On 8 October 2007, 307,708,550 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued pursuant to the rights issue at a price of HK$0.52 per ordinary
shares as detailed in a circular dated 10 September 2007 and an
announcement on results of the rights issue dated 3 October 2007.

On 5 May 2008, 25 July 2008 and 8 December 2008, 8,900,000,
14,413,000 and 11,232,000 share options in issue pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company were exercised by certain directors of the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.375, HK$0.300, and HK$0.192
per ordinary share respectively, resulting in issue of 34,545,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each (note 29).

(d)

(e)

(FEHNAHA—TTLFNANAER)EER
BARAREBRAE - STRFRPRERE - 28T
2,750,343 B R E(E0.01 B T F AR - FARETT
fBO.74%8 7T °

R-ZZZELF+ANB EREBH#KZT
307,708,550 FAREEO.0LE TH @Ak - Bk
11f80.528 T - HFBHNREHAR-_FETLFNATH
BN —EELFE T AZANRRERRE -

R-ZZEEN\FRARHB —ETN\FLA-THAK
ZZEEN\F+ZANR  ARRBTRESRER
ARk AERH 85 B7T{£8,900,000 * 14,413,000 %
11,232,000 B #1THERE - REES R ASRL A
f%0.375% 7T + 0.300/47T )&% 0.192/47T + A L 31T
34,545,0000% & A& E E0.0178 T AR 19 (i 5E29) ©
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29.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all the then shareholders passed on
14 November 2005, the Company has conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for employee compensation.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants for their contributions to the
Group and for such other purposes as the board of directors (the “Board”)
may approve from time to time.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite any
executive or non-executive directors including independent non-
executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies;
any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by any
employees, executive or non-executive directors of each member of the
Group or its associated companies; any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the Group or its associated companies
(or persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing
such services); any chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company; any associates of any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company; and any employees (whether full-time or
part-time) of substantial shareholders of the Company, provided that the
Board may have absolute discretion to determine whether or not one
falls within the above categories, (together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up options (“Option(s)”) to subscribe for shares at
a price determined in accordance with the paragraph below.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the Board
would take into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion
consider appropriate.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
period no further Options will be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect, and
Options which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued pursuant to the
exercise of Options granted hereunder shall be a price solely determined
by the Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at least the
highest of:

(a)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the business day on which an offer is
accepted by the grantee or if such date of acceptance by the
grantee is not a business day, the immediately preceding business
day;

(b)  a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date on which an offer
is accepted by the grantee (provided that the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any business day falling within the
period before listing of the shares where the Company has been
listed for less than 5 business days as at the date on which an
offer is accepted by the grantee); and

29.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

BARR 43 % A3 B9 1 & %7 A

BREERE2EBREN_ZTRAF+—ATHREREDN
EERZER - ARRCE R RAEIER 8 ([ 5Za
g1 EREEHM -

ZA BB ERARRAREN L - stREELASE
EnERkESS((EFS ) MEHENEME
B B T2EESE - RE - Mo o Bk SHA

5o

RiEZE - EFSABBEBEARF - HMEAF)
K ERBEMPITRIFATES - BB IS
TEFNEMEES (TREBIEFFE)  AEEZKE
NRHEBERRNEAES - BITHEITESM
RUMBREFENEADBREA  AREZKE QT
FHBENRNHBAA  BRALREMRER (4
ZEMRHZERBHOAL - BITRRF]) « ARF
ERERTRABRRTERR : ARAEMNES - =
ZITBABREERROEABEA + REARFEE
BREEMAER (TR - EE=gr 2
HEEER@ALEG BN Dt ER (Bt A 157
REAW2EE])  ANRGBRE(ERED X
RIE T X HEE R BR R
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RERJIRE X R TIE
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BE ShEFBEaETRAG2EE  MAEE
REBARDERE) :

(@) MEBREERAEKMNEER (RMWBHEX
BRARWERILIELERR - REEZ AW
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

(c)  the nominal value of a share

The total number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on the date of
commencement of dealings in the shares on the Stock Exchange
(“Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless the Company obtains an
approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating such 10% limit.

On 9 May 2008, an ordinary resolution regarding the refreshment
of Scheme Mandate Limit was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Starting
from 9 May 2008, further options to subscribe up to 113,716,468
ordinary shares of the Company, being 10% of the total number
of shares in issue on the date of AGM are available to be granted
under the Scheme.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme and the option to which the Offer relates
shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect when
the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the Offer
duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting thereof is
received by the Company within 14 days from the date upon which the
Offer is made.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in equity.

B ISR B AL

29. UGB XAAHESHM 2

() —KRBRHEE

RITEREZ 8 AR RIEA E ARt
R HPTEBRER BITHRRMER - & X
MMBBR DN MR EEE A D BT
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BACRAHERIBRID o FHEZ10% R AL A&t
FBARERZAT BIGRRE R R A -

R-ZZ)N\FRANA - —HEAERER
BT BRARNBERBFRG ([REBFA
g LEARRRERMLAE - BZTENFH
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2 BT RS T RITHBROEE - MEBRBE BT
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2008 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

29. RO ESHM =)

REZZBENF+-A=+—0  ARARBEZEE

0 R AR T R BB R BN T

Number of options
BRESE
Balance at
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of Exercisahle 2007 and turing turing during 31 December price
grant period 1 January 2008 the year the year the year 2008 per share
(dd/mmfyyyy)  (dd/mm/yyyy) HK$
RZBEBLE
+=R=t-H RZZBENF
R=2BN\F +=A=t-H
REBH figid —B—B#iE RERFH RERTTE RERKN ioFeies BRITHE
(B/B/%) (R/B/%¥) B
Executive directors
YrEs
Mr. Taochaifu 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,188,225 - - - 6,188,225 0.806
Choofuang
(“Mr.C.F. Tao") 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 to 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.635
el e
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 to 28/04/2011 - 2,500,000 (2,500,000) - - 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 to 20/07/2011 - 5,271,000 (5,271,000) - - 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 to 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 (3,744,000) - - 0.192
13,553,861 11,515,000 (11,515,000) - 13,553,861
Mr. Tao Richard 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - - 6,828,353 0.806
(“Mr. Richard Tao")
BRI E 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 to 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 to 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000 (3,200,000) - - 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 to 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000 (4,571,000) - - 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 to 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 (3,744,000) - - 0.192
14,193,989 11,515,000 (11,515,000) - 14,193,989
Mr. Tao Paul 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - - 6,828,353 0.806
(“Mr. Paul Tao")
L. 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 to 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 to 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000 (3,200,000) - - 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 to 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000 (4,571,000) - - 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 to 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 (3,744,000) - - 0.192
14,193,989 11,515,000 (11,515,000) - 14,193,989
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

29. URBZAHNEEEM 2

Number of options
BRERE
Balance at
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of Exercisahle 2007 and during turing turing 31 December price
grant period 1 January 2008 the year the year the year 2008 per share
(dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/mm/yyyy) HK$
it 3
+ZA=t-H RZBENF
RZBENF Tr=HEr=F
BRELAE dc - B - BH&H RERFH RERTTE RERXHM iofeEes BRTRE
(BR/A/%) (B/B/&) BT
Executive directors
(Contd)
HTEE(E)
Mr. Kong Mui Sum ~ 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - - 6,328,353 0.806
Lawrence
IR E 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 to 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 to 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 to 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000 - - 4,571,000 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 to 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 - - 3,744,000 0.192
14,193,989 11,515,000 - - 25,708,989
Mr. Yim Chun Leung ~ 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - - 6,328,353 0.806
Bt
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 to 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 to 28/04/2011 - 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 to 20/07/2011 - 4,571,000 - - 4,571,000 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 to 18/11/2011 - 3,744,000 - - 3,744,000 0.192
14,193,989 11,515,000 - - 25,708,989
Employees of the Group 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 5,360,257 - = (1,019,985) 4,340,272 0.806
FEEER
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 to 03/07/2010 6,269,785 - - (1,525,083) 4,744,702 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 7,966,000 - = (1,602,000) 6,364,000 0.524
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 to 28/04/2011 - 5,500,000 - (400,000) 5,100,000 0.375
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 to 20/07/2011 - 8,406,000 - - 8,406,000 0.300
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 to 18/11/2011 - 7,830,000 - - 7,830,000 0.192
19,596,042 21,736,000 - (4,547,068) 36,784,974
89,925,859 79,311,000 (34,545,000) (4,547,068) 130,144,791
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2007 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

29. URGBZAHNEEHFM &)

RIZBELF+-A=+—0  ARARBEZEE
H B R K oRTTRERBUE RSN T

Number of options
ez e
Adjustment on
Balance at Granted changes in Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of Exercisable 1 January during  share structure during during 31 December price per
grant period 2007 the year  during the year the year the year 2007 share*
(do/mmiyyyy) — (ad/mmiyyyy) HK$
RZZEtE Eng RZZSHE
-A-H Ri%E +ZRA=t-A
RiAS TEEE MER  RERRD  BBORE  REROR  RERXR mgEs  BRTRE"
(A/R/%) (B/R/%) AT
Executive directors
HiTES
Mr. C.F. Tao 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 5,800,000 - 388,225 - - 6,188,225 0.806
BERLE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 t0 03/07/2010 - 3,600,000 165,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 o 17/10/2010 - 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
5,800,000 7,200,000 553,861 - - 135538l
Mr. Richard Tao 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,400,000 - 428,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806
BRATRE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 t0 03/07/2010 - 3,600,000 165,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 o 17/10/2010 - 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
6,400,000 7,200,000 593,989 - - 14193989
Mr. Paul Tao 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,400,000 - 428,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806
mHELE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 t0 03/07/2010 - 3,600,000 165,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 o 17/10/2010 - 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
6,400,000 7,200,000 593,989 - - 14193989
Mr. Kong Mui Sum 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,400,000 - 428,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806
Lawrence
PESS S 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 t0 03/07/2010 - 3,600,000 165,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 o 17/10/2010 - 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
6,400,000 7,200,000 593,989 - - 14193989
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,400,000 - 428,353 - - 6,828,353 0.806
Bifm it
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 t0 03/07/2010 - 3,600,000 165,636 - - 3,765,636 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 o 17/10/2010 - 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.524
6,400,000 7,200,000 593,989 - - 14193989
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont'd) 29. LR ZAHNEEHM =)
Number of options
BREZE
Adjustment on
Balance at Granted changes in Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Date of Exercisable 1 January during  share structure during during 31 December price per
grant period 2007 the year  during the year the year the year 2007 share*
(dd/immiyyyy) — (ddimmiyyyy) HKS
RIZSLE g RIZ5LE
—A-H Rin%sE TZA=1-H
FHAS Ll MR RERRE  2RNEE REROE  RERRX WEn  BROFE
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) BT
Employees of 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 to 09/04/2009 6,116,000 - 336,257 - (1,092,000) 5,360,257 0.806
the Group
AEEES 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 t0 03/07/2010 - 5,994,000 275,785 - - 6,269,785 0.635
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 to 17/10/2010 - 7,966,000 - - - 7,966,000 0.524
6,116000 13,960,000 612,042 = (1,092,000) 19,596,042
37516000 49,960,000 3,541,859 - (1,092,000) 89,925,859
& The exercise price and number of Options outstanding have been adjusted i BHE-ZTtLtF+-_A=+—HBLLFE ' ARMN
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme as a result of issue of ordinary AT A% 5 1T I AR (KT 3E28(b) ) R Ak 1% (FT &
shares on bonus issue (note 28(b)) and upon rights issue (note 28(d)) 28(d)) + IRIBZTEI IR R TE BRI TE(E
during the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out as follows: MEEETHRAZINENT
For Options granted on 4 April 2006, 36,424,000 outstanding options HRZZTEAFMANAREERE  TRER
exercisable at HK$0.86 each have been adjusted to 38,861,894 options 0.86/8 L1 T HI36,424,00017 RITIE B AED AR A
exercisable at HK$0.806 each. AR FA%0.806 /8 L1 T{# #938,861,89417 E A4 -
For Options granted on 4 July 2007, 23,994,000 outstanding options HRZETLF L ANAREERE  TRER
exercisable at HK$0.664 each have been adjusted to 25,097,965 options 0.66478 017 #923,994,00019 R {TE B IRED A%
exercisable at HK$0.635 each. A AREAR0.6357 T T{E /925,097,965 FE AR 7
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

Options outstanding and weighted average exercise price for the

reporting periods presented are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

29. RO ESHM =)

RIS R R ARTTREBARE K P91 TEE 25110
T

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
InfEEH RS
#H TEE Eg=| 1TEE
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BX1TE 89,925,859 0.68 37,516,000 0.86
Granted B 79,311,000 0.28 49,960,000 0.59
Adjustments FEES - - 3,541,859 -
Exercised 171 (34,545,000) 0.28 = =
Lapsed P (4,547,068) 0.63 (1,092,000) 0.86
Outstanding at 31 December RN+ —A=+—BKi7E 130,144,791 0.54 89,925,859 0.68

Exercisable at 31 December R+-—A=+—Ha17E 130,144,791 89,925,859

Options granted on 4 July 2007:

The fair values of Options of approximately HK$2,967,000 granted on
4 July 2007 were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
Significant inputs into the calculation included a weighted average share
price on issue date of HK$0.6608 and exercise prices as illustrated
above. Furthermore, the calculation took into account the expected
dividend yield of 1.54% and a volatility rate of 37.78%, based on
expected share price. Risk-free annual interest rate was determined at

4.265%.

The underlying expected volatility was determined with reference to the

historical volatilities of the Company over one year period.

Options granted on 18 October 2007:

The fair values of Options of approximately HK$3,165,000 granted on
18 October 2007 were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. Significant inputs into the calculation included a weighted
average share price on issue date of HK$0.5001 and exercise prices
as illustrated above. Furthermore, the calculation took into account the
expected dividend yield of 2.97% and a volatility rate of 53.87%, based
on expected share price. Risk-free annual interest rate was determined

at 3.573%.

The underlying expected volatility was determined with reference to the

historical volatilities of the Company over one year period.

RZZETLF ANRREEBEIRE -

RZZZ+FLANBEENBERENAABED
2,967,000 o YA B BT BEREAET - LA
STEFERMNEZ SR - BIFENET BRI
80.660878 LA K _ERFTIMATT(EE bbb + I8
FTEEERIRTEHRENEN154%MTERE R K
37.78% KUK IR o MR FFIEKE H4.265F -

HEBATEHIR R T2 BRAN A ) — R A LS H RO B SR
BE -

B

REZBELF+A+/\BREHBRE -

RZZBEEF+A+/\BRENBREN AL BED
3,165,000/ 7 J5 A —IHA B EEEAETE « WA
AEMMERANERRE - BIENETEIEF IR
B0.5001/8 LA Je ERFTALAVTTE(E » tEoh - IR
SHEZE BRIEHREFEH2.97%MIEHRRE TR
53.87 %HIK IR o M EBRF K ER3.573E

MRRATE RN IR Y 2 BRI B — 5 LA L IS HR RO R SR 1
B -

98 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE—

29.

TENF+A=+—RIEFE

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (cont'd)
Options granted on 29 April 2008:

The fair values of Options of approximately HK$1,610,000 granted on
29 April 2008 were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
Significant inputs into the calculation included a weighted average share
price on issue date of HK$0.375 and exercise prices as illustrated above.
Furthermore, the calculation took into account the expected dividend
yield of 2.70% and a volatility rate of 47.84%, based on expected share
price. Risk-free annual interest rate was determined at 1.564%.

The underlying expected volatility was determined with reference to the
historical volatilities of the Company over one year period.

Options granted on 21 July 2008:

The fair values of Options of approximately HK$1,238,000 granted on
21 July 2008 were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
Significant inputs into the calculation included a weighted average share
price on issue date of HK$0.30 and exercise prices as illustrated above.
Furthermore, the calculation took into account the expected dividend
yield of 3.39% and a volatility rate of 57.66%, based on expected share
price. Risk-free annual interest rate was determined at 1.727%.

The underlying expected volatility was determined with reference to the
historical volatilities of the Company over one year period.

Options granted on 19 November 2008:

The fair values of Options of approximately HK$1,160,000 granted on
19 November 2008 were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. Significant inputs into the calculation included a weighted
average share price on issue date of HK$0.18 and exercise prices as
illustrated above. Furthermore, the calculation took into account the
expected dividend yield of 5.55% and a volatility rate of 63.43%, based
on expected share price. Risk-free annual interest rate was determined
at 0.551%.

The underlying expected volatility was determined with reference to the
historical volatilities of the Company over one year period.

In total, employee compensation expense of HK$4,008,000
(note 8) has been included in the consolidated income statement
(2007: HK$6,132,000) for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
corresponding amount of which has been credited to share option
reserves (note 30). No liabilities were recognised due to share-based
employee compensation.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, 34,545,000 options (2007:
Nil) were exercised resulting in issue of 34,545,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each and no options (2007: Nil ) were expired pursuant to the
Scheme. The weighted average remaining contractual life of the Options
outstanding at 31 December 2008 is approximately 1.58 years (2007:
2.06 years).

The weighted average closing prices of the shares immediately before
the date of exercise the share options on 5 May 2008, 25 July 2008 and
8 December 2008 are HK$0.373, HK$0.350 and HK$0.294 respectively.

29.

B ISR B AL

A A R S A (4)
R=BB\EMA =+ B R -

ZZN\FMOA- TN ARENBRENAAEBE
i’71610 000 LTI LA ZIEA BARE E BT - It
HHEMERMEREUE - BRERNETHMINETS
B fB0.375 8 TT A K ERFPIALETTEEME © ULSN - LLIR
SAHEEEEREHREFSEN2.70%MEHRER Kk
47 8A%HIKNE - EREREFFIRER]LS64E -

il
i

%EHH&%E@E”ZIK Al —F A LR HIRE 2R R

FI}W

REZZBENFALA - +— BREBE

RIZZN\FLA-+—ERENBREN AR EE
#71,238,000/8 L /9 A —IAA Hi#E E ERET - it

BAEMEANEREE - BENETEOMET
BHREC.30BTTIA K ERFTAETTEE © thIP - LA

FTEEERRTEHRETEN3.39%MIEHRERE
57.66% MK 1R o MERFFEEALT27E -

HEATERR IR D2 RN AR —
BE -

F LA LB BBV AR SRR B

RZZBZNF+— A+ B REABRGE -

RZZZNF+—ATNABARENBEREN AR EE
#1,160,000/&8 7L Ty A — A HIREEERAEE © It
BAEMERANEREE - BRENETROMET
BRB(EC.18BTTIA K ERFTAETTEE © thoh - HIH
AHHEEZERAHRETENS55%MRHRE KRR
63.43%BViR R o 4 [E e MR E 430.551 [ -

MRRATREA IR TY 2 IR R — 5 A L IR RO R S K
B -

BE_TTN\F+_A=T—HALFENESKER
th 25+ A4,008,00078 7T (K 7E8) B B F BRI 2 (—
T 1 6,132,000/87T) * RS ARBR
R (EE30) - ARNMES HEARMD R - B
Ut I ERERAE M A fE -

HE_ZZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE - *ETJ%ZZE
&l + 34,545,00007 BB IE(Z T T : ?ﬁ)ﬁfﬂ
BEEE1734,545,000R% FAXEIEO.01 B TR E i
SIEERE(ZTTLF - |)FH - EA_77/\EF
FTZA=+—H ' MARITEAEREINEESFGRE
HEH A1 58F(— BT : 2.06%F) °

R-ZEZN\ERARA —ETZNEFELA-+HAK
—EEN\FE+AN\B - ZEBERETEB TR
DINEFHWHESD 31503738 7T ~ 03508 T &
0.2948 7T °
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30. RESERVES

(a)

30. f#f&

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

Group (a) AEE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HaE FE T T
Retained profits REBEF 103,249 139,104
Share premium BR =B (i) 447,936 436,718
Share option reserves R 16,018 13,760
Convertible notes equity reserves  AIIRARZEIEE S FE 1 3,011 3,011
Merger reserve B pHEE (ii) 89,936 89,936
Hotel property, plant and BEIEYE BB RS
equipment revaluation reserve EhEE 7,126 7,395
Statutory reserve YETEREE (iif) 19,508 16,713
Exchange reserve & 5 67,291 27,123
754,075 733,760
Proposed final dividend BRARHARR 8 - 11,283
754,075 745,043
The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are presented REBRFRBERNFANEE) - RIBREROGEERE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial BRP 25 -

statements.

()

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 Law 3 of 1962, as
consolidated and revised, of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium account is distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the excess of
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation completed
on 23 June 2005 over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

According to the relevant PRC Laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of its net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The transfer
of this reserve must be made before the distribution of
dividend to the entity’s equity owners. The statutory reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Of the consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$33,225,000 for the year (2007:
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$36,115,000), profit of HK$19,293,000 (2007:
HK$8,600,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company for the year.

0)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

REHSHBERE2ERANE(—R=F
FE=EN - BiRA RIERT) - BRORERY
DIERTARBRR - HEZERDIREE A H
% ARBARRNEER BB EBH RN
175 »

AEBMEHEHE  RAKER_ZTREAN
A+ =Bl ASEEATKEHREA
A RAREE - B AR I E AT 1 TH
RRRIPRDEERNZERR °

RBAEPEDES] - NP BRI R RERS
B& R AEERBRBRAN - SR 10%E
BELERE  BEEARBEREEZ QARG
MEARL0% » WHARFZ A FERR D KA
SAEREIEE ZERBRTADIK @ 40
ZABFRARIN

FARXRAREHEAREEAEER
33,225,000 BIL(ZZZLF : KRAIERE
B AL EF 536,115,000 7T) © & &F
19,293,000/ 7. ( ZZZ+4F :8,600,000/7T)
ERARBFEFBRKRTERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

30. RESERVES (contd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

30. ffE#)

(b) Company (h) ZAAF
Share  Convertible Proposed
Share option  notes equity  Contributed Retained final
premium reserves reserves surplus profits dividend Total
TRREE Bk
BREE BRERE Bx@HE BaRH REREA RERE w@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TET TR TR
(note) (note) (note) (note) (note)
(Hiit) (Hit) (Hiiz) (Hist) (Hiit)
Balance at 1 January 2007 RoTZT+EF 223,643 7,628 - (22) 14,037 7,135 252,421
—A—BRER
Profit for the year EERF = = = - 8,600 - 8,600
Employee share based PARSAR 2 RO 1= B #r
compensation (note 29) (H1i£29) = 6,132 = = = = 6,132
Arising from issue of ordinary ARG A ETERR
shares on bonus MmEE
issue (note 28(b)) (Bizz28(b) (143) - - - - - (143)
Arising from issue of ordinary ZZTREURA
shares as 2006 scrip BHBIETLBR
dividend (note 28(c)) MEE(Hi228(c)) 2,008 = = = = = 2,008
Arising from issue of ordinary RESERTLTER
shares on subscription mESE
(note 28(2)) (H1i228(2)) 56,756 = = = = = 56,756
Arising from issue of ordinary R T LB
shares upon rights issue MmES
(note 28(d)) (H:228(d)) 156,931 - - - - = 156,931
Share issue expenses Mein B 1Th % (2,477) - - - - = (2,477)
Issue of convertible notes BT BRER - = 3,650 = = = 3,650
Deferred tax liability arising HrABREEmES
on convertible notes MELEHIEAE = - (639) = = - (639)
Dividend paid relating to BT ERHY
2006 final dividend BEHEMRE = = = = = (7,135) (7,135)
Proposed final dividend BRI S - - - - (11,283) 11,283 -
Balance at 31 December 2007 N-ZEZ+E1-R
and 1 January 2008 =+-BR 436,718 13,760 3,011 (22) 11,354 11,283 476,104
—ZTN\$-A-H
ik
Profit for the year FERM - - - - 19,293 = 19,293
Employee share based BARR (7 %2 (& B % B
compensation (note 29) (H1£29) = 4,008 = = = = 4,008
Arising from issue of IEBRER T
ordinary shares on BRMEE
exercise of share options (H1z£28(e)
(note 28(e)) 11,218 (1,750) - - - - 9,468
Dividend paid relating to BHE-ZT+5XRY
2007 final dividend BREHERRE = = = = (89) (11,283) (11,372)
Balance at 31 Decemher R=ZZNE+=R
2008 =t+—-AMEL 447,936 16,018 3,011 (22) 30,558 - 497,501
Note: These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s reserves of Mt ZERBREORALATNEEABRANK

HK$497,501,000 (2007: HK$464,821,000) in the balance sheet
of the Company.

2 B B #5497,501,00058 7T (Z BT L4 -
464,821,00087T)

HRERERAH
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30. RESERVES (cont'd)

(b)

Company (Cont'd)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Group’s reorganisation completed on 23 June 2005 over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

31. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

30. EE=)

(b)

KAT(E)

ARENEHEY - AFEBN-SFLES
A=+= BRR R A EEEAT FRMHEA
ANAEBE  BHOEEBONSERES
RN -

31. EEMRITER

Group
rEH
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE FET T
Analysis of pledged bank deposits: BRI TER DT ¢
Deposit pledged against banking MW AERBITRE
facilities granted to the mortgagee R E R (a) 2,900 6,824
Deposit pledged against bank loans BIRITERMERNER
(note 26(a)) (Btat26(a) (b) 6,265 54,606
9,165 61,430

Notes: it -

(@)  The bank deposits were pledged as security in favour of banks and financial (a) HRIZIUZIBERE AL - Eiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁtgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
institutions in the PRC which provided mortgage loan to purchasers of EEREEAARE MRS (RBRIZEERDIL
properties for the period from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans RITEREEFRTFERMEBEERHBIZBERNBEA
to the date when the certificates for housing ownership and certificates of RITREREE - ERIERR - ZZERBREXSE
others’ interest for housing ownership (collectively known as “Certificates”) ?%T%EZ%%EHH%%EV@% o ZIEFRUAT A IRITFERFIE -
are granted to the property purchasers. Such charges would be released RFEFIRGTE o
when the Certificates are granted to the property purchasers. This deposit
earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates.

(b)  The effective interest rate of short-term bank deposits are ranging from (b) EHBRTEFNEEFER/IEZ288E(ZZTE

1.00% to 2.88% (2007: 1.88% to 2.38%) and not eligible for immediate
cancellation upon the settlement of pledged facilities.

+4F : 1.88EE238E) ' I RAIAEEHIFRE R
B 37 BIHREH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

32.

B ISR B AL

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32. BeRBELEEY
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows: BeRREZEEMHTUOT :
Group
TEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at banks and in hand RITEEF RIS 125,973 175,701
Bank overdrafts (note 26) RITBE R (H15726) (6,488) =
119,485 175,701

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Group to which they relate:

REERBERNASKRESEEY - HATIAEE
WEEEE AN BRI -

Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Renminbi ARHE 112,841 76,595
United States dollar E 7,604 10,972
As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, cash and cash equivalents BA TTLFERZZEN\F+_A=F—0 BHEk
denominated in Renminbi are deposited with banks in the PRC, the REFBMAAREBEMNTRPRZRIRIT © 8%
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign EUARBRBMNNEFRIRRINEAESZF IBUT‘HE
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange FEEW\\ LR FTPR I ©

control promulgated by the PRC government.

The effective interest rate of cash at banks is in range of 0.01% to 4.75%
and those have maturity within 30 days.

RITRETFHRERFEF0.01EZE4.75F - WH30E A
FH -
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33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

33. EEREREEAESHE

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a9 EZEMWS
Salaries,
allowance Share-based Contribution
and other payment to retirement
Fees  benefit in kind* expense  henefit scheme Total
e DY)
R HAL *fEE BikE
E=HS BYFIE B FTEIftR #st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FERT FET
2008 —EEN\F
Executive directors HITES
Mr. C. F. Tao BEERE - 1,462 564 81 2,107
Mr. Richard Tao BRI E - 2,113 593 107 2,813
Mr. Paul Tao FRiHTE = 2,113 593 107 2,813
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence TIHREE = 2,113 593 107 2,813
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BiRS%E - 2437 593 124 3,154
- 10,238 2,936 526 13,700
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut BREBEE 140 = = = 140
Independent non-executive directors BV IFHITES
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai FREXE 210 = = = 210
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun RUBAE 140 = = = 140
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique BREES S E 140 = = = 140
490 - - - 490
630 10,238 2,936 526 14,330
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(a)

(b)

B ISR B AL

33. EERGREEAEME )

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) EEME(E)
Salaries,
allowance Share-based Contribution
and other payment to retirement
Fees  benefit in kind* expense  benefit scheme Total
il PARR
SRR R EAD XfHEE BiRke
BEie BEWH iola53 HE G5 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
2007 —ETEHE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. C. F. Tao BEBERE - 2,038 884 101 3,023
Mr. Richard Tao PR - 2,664 884 131 3,679
Mr. Paul Tao M5t E - 2,869 884 142 3,895
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence TIFRRREE = 2,665 884 131 3,680
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BRI E - 3,163 884 156 4,203
- 13,399 4,420 661 18,480
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut [ B 126 - - - 126
Independent non-executive directors BV EHITES
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai FTRERE 189 = = = 189
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun BuBEE 126 = = = 126
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique FREEST S 126 = = = 126
441 - - - 441
567 13,399 4,420 661 19,047
*  These amounts include gratuity and bonuses. * SERIERMINE RIEA o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FA - BECAEEEEHELRBRELM
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2007: Nil). e ZH(ZTTLF : ) °
57,575,000 share options (note 29) were granted to the directors FR - ARNRAREFERS7,575,0001 1 I HE
of the Company during the year (2007: 36,000,000). (FF3E29) (ZZZ 4 : 36,000,000/ ) °
Senior management emoluments (h) SREEAEME

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included five (2007: five) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2007: Nil).

AEEALERELERSFMALRELS
(ZZ2ZLF - AR)EENHE - EWESTT -

FA - AEEREREEEMME - AR
S| H B AN ER I Sl 1 /5 DN BE 7 5% [ 1) A BB 22 D
ABEBAHE(—TTLF  E) o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those transactions and balances with related parties disclosed

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

34. BEALRS

PR TS Rk P B ELRR I A T TTRIR 5 I AR SR AGBR

elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transactions are GN - ANEFEEREEATDETATRS
carried out with related parties:
Group
REE
2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET T
Acquisition of investment properties from: [a] %I A L UREEIR B % - (a)
— Ms. Tao Miriam —kR#Eta L (a)(i) - 18,438
— Ms. Hon Hing Tong Patricia —BERut (a)ii) = 13,045
— Mr. Richard Tao — BRI EE - 13,062
— Ms. Tao Yi Hou Mildred — PR+ (a)(iii) - 18,500
— Ms. Ong Ker Shing —FAR&Zt (a)(iv) = 18,464
— Lakeside Consultants Limited — BB AERAT (a)v) - 2,198
— Eastside Properties Limited —RAYEBRAF (a)(vi) = 2,346
— Lanick Group Limited —BAFEEBR AR (a)(vii) = 2,241
— Cosmopolitan Group Limited —tHRUEEEER AR (a)(viii) - 2,320
Rental expenses to Fontwell Fontwell K ER H9F8 £ 2 (b) (1,260) (992)
Rental income from Clark Hatch Fitness [\ B/ 855
Centers (Shanghai) Limited BRAR([h &)
(“Clark Hatch™) B © WA (c) 806 742
Membership fee to Clark Hatch SRR ST EREE (c) (282) =

(a)

On 17 October 2006, the Company and certain connected
parties of the Company, namely Ms. Tao Miriam, Ms. Hon
Hing Tong Patricia, Mr. Richard Tao, Ms. Tao Yi Hou Mildred,
Ms. Ong Ker Shing, Eastside Properties Limited, Cosmopolitan
Group Limited, Lakeside Consultants Limited and Lanick Group
Limited (collectively known as the “Vendors”) entered into a
master transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase 82 units of Suzhou Garden Villa (collectively
known as the “Properties”) from the Vendors at a consideration
of RMB87,975,000. The consideration was determined with
reference to the valuation of the properties of RMB103,500,000
as at 31 August 2006, estimated by DTZ. The completion of
acquisition of the Properties is conditional upon fulfilment of
certain conditions by the Group and the Vendors on or before
31 December 2007. During the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group acquired all of the Properties at total consideration of
approximately RMB91,542,000, including expenditure directly
attributable to the acquisition.

Pursuant to this master transfer agreement, the Vendors or any
parties directed by the Vendors agreed to subscribe for new shares
of the Company for not more than 90,017,210 ordinary shares at
HK$0.6405 each. The net proceeds from the subscription after
deducting related expenses will be used as the general working
capital of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Company issued 90,017,210 ordinary shares at HK$0.01
each (note 28(a)). Issue of shares on subscription were non-cash
transactions for settlement of the remaining balances due to the
Vendors.

REZZBERE+A+TLR  ARBREREE
TREAL  SEERsLLt BEXELL
PR RAL - R LE - EAIREL - /A
MEARAR  ERUEEEBRAF - HEH
AERAR MEAFISEARAR (BRI E 7 ])
R —IEMERERER N - B ARFR
BRETHBEAHNBEESESEM (MBI ZE
M) - RERARMKS7,975,0007T » %HR(E
TEZREBBEROTAMEZSYER_ZTTRF
NA=+—H#& A EAR103,500,0007T i
B - WEZSWENTK  BHAKERE
FRZETAF+ A=+ B ARIERE
TR - FAEE - BE-TTLF+ A
=t HLEFE  AEEREREHNARE
91,542,0007T (‘B2 15 Ui /0 B B FE (L P S0 ) W i
FRBZEYE -

BRIEZMEEZERGZR  EAXERNE A
£EATREREM0.64055 TRBE BB
90,017,210/ A A R L BAX - RBEATHE K
EFREIFREEAYE - SREAEE—KE
BES HE_ZTTHHFE+_A=1+—HIF
£ - ARFHRE0.017T39790,017,210%
LA (M E28(a)) - RRIER TG A3
BeRG  WENBREHNRIBRIE o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

34. BEALRF &)

(a)

(c)

(Cont'd)

(i) Ms. Tao Miriam is the daughter of Mr. C.F. Tao.

(i) Ms. Hon Hing Tong Patricia is the wife of Mr. Paul Tao.

(iii) ~ Ms. Tao Yi Hou Mildred is the niece of Mr. C.F. Tao.

(iv)  Ms. Ong Ker Shing is the daughter of Ms. Tao Yi Hou Mildred.

(v) Mr. Richard Tao is a director and the beneficial owner of
this company.

(vi)  Mr. C.F. Tao’s wife is a director and the beneficial owner of
this company.

(vii)  Mr. Paul Tao is a director and the beneficial owner of this
company.

(viii) Ms. Tao Miriam is a director and the beneficial owner of
this company.

Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial
interests in Fontwell. The charge by Fontwell was in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao are directors of Clark Hatch
and Mr. Paul Tao has beneficial interests in Clark Hatch. The
charge to Clark Hatch was in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements. The membership fee was charged at
terms mutually agreed by both parties.

Key management personnel compensation
The directors are of the opinion that the key management

personnel were solely the executive directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are set out in note 33(a) above.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i) MRBLXLIREEHEENLS -
(i) BEZZLRBHELENET -
(i)  PEFRELZ L REEHLENELR
vy FAMRZLREFELLINLSR -

v BREELEAZAPNEENEGHESR
Ao

(vi) MBEHEENEFRZARNEERES
BEA -

Vi) FEHEELEAZARNEENEGHEA
Ao

i}

(vii) PR RETRZAREER
Ao

gy ol

\

BMEBLE BARTEERBHELEER
FontwellFF #E5 B 25125 © Fontwell J5 iR IEAEE
R ERUEERA -

R EEREHELER RN R ETFNE
= MAESHALETR RN R ETTHEEs
HE#R o (AR re B A WK B A Ty IR IBAR R 5
AR RUER - @R & IR AT KR E
F IR o

T2EEABHH

BEEZRA IREEABEREARRNGTE
= REFMFBEN LB M3 -
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35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

(i) Capital commitments in respect of properties held under
development for the Group

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TR\FT-A=+—AILFE

35. RERKEHELH

(@) BEAEE

(i) FEEEHZREFYFHELRE

Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Contracted but not provided for ERAEREE 156,023 117,251

(ii)  Attributable share of associate’s capital commitments in

(i) ETBERARKBYF  BERRE

respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment B E LR RIERIEE S
Group
rE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for B AR BEE 1,932 1,783

(b)  Operating lease arrangements

(i) The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts

(b)) REHERH

(i) FEERET AL EE WY

under non-cancellable operating leases which are receivable KRR IEF 2 B TR T -
as follows:
Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Not later than one year TiEBig—F 10,093 10,209
Later than one year and not later —FRETEA
than five years REF 2,211 6,192
12,304 16,401

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 14)
under operating lease arrangements which run for initial
periods of less than one year to three years or expire at
dates as mutually agreed between the Group and the
respective tenants, without an option to renew the lease
terms at the expiry date. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

AEEREEEHELHFRDEREYE (M
14) - MIFZREBI N —FE=FRIZAEE ERHHE
PHREREH B HER - ELENE R B AR ER
# o MOGR—RITRERPINREZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Operating lease arrangements (Cont'd)

(ii)

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as
follows:

B ISR B AL

35. REREEMHEREE)

(h) REHEERHEE)

(i) FEERET B AL HEEZHT
ARREHELEFEFNT -

Group

rER
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T T
Not later than one year TiEBiE—F 1,681 2,153

Later than one year and not later —FBBTHER

than five years HEF 122 2,145
1,803 4,298

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial periods of two
years or expire at dates as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective landlords, without an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, the Group had no
contingent rentals receivable or payable.

36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS — COMPANY

The Company provided corporate guarantees to certain banks for all
unsecured bank loans and overdrafts granted to subsidiary (note 26).

The fair value of the financial guarantee contracts recognised in the
Company’s balance sheet was HK$72,000 during the year ended
31 December 2008 (2007: HK$7,179,000). The fair value of financial
guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing models where the
main assumptions are the probability of default by the subsidiary. Such
financial guarantee contracts have terms of one to three years.

AEERBEEHELHHEZRY
¥ NERBMESIR A KB EARE
THRBEN B BER - ML TR
FAATHA)R IR -

R-ZEEL+ER_ZTENE+ A
=+—08 ' AEE W E R FE W ERS
DEAYizkc

36. MIBEREN-ARLQF

RARR T —HME QRN ERERRTERR
BEX 0 [AETIRITREATERERE26)

BE-_ZZENF+-_R=+—HILFE  EXRAF
BERBERARINVBERSNNIABER
72,0008 T (ZZFZ L5 : 7,179,000 7T ) © B 154
RAENNARBETZPEEEEAEE - EHFK
MEERR A —EMEB ALY - BREME
EREONPRA—Z==F-
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37.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing properties commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or
sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as set out in the table below.

The debt-to-equity ratio at balance sheet date was as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

37. EXEERERER

AEEEREANTIZEREREASEAHELSE
By AMET AR RIRH @R R R A A a5 AR R 5
RAER o TEBBERERKFEEYEER - KA
BIRHIALETRE -

REERBRENRN 2 £ 8 M ARREE E R R
fEHEEEAEENARRE - A HRER
R AREREREARRRNRSOEE - BT
i - MRRREER  ERFNEBRERLE
BENRDAE -

AREER FRNERR AR LR EAERLAR
K - BEEMIHA TR -

WEER - AEES B ERRLERNT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Total debt WEE 580,563 482,460
Add: Proposed dividend (note 10(a)) e BORBE. (A7iE10()) = 11,283
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 32) B Re RIBSEEBW(HE32) (119,485) (175,701)
Net debt FEE 461,078 318,042
Total equity AR 855,355 847,183
Less: Proposed dividend (note 10(a)) B BURIR S (M1aE10(a)) - (11,283)
Adjusted capital KRG N 855,355 835,900
Debt-to-equity ratio BEERL R 54% 38%

The increase in the debt-to-equity ratio during the year resulted primarily
from the increase in borrowings raised for the future and existing
property development projects.

FRABESLE TATERHNBRERBYE
BRIA R INMEEPIEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=t+—BILFE

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group currently does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key management to
analyse and formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to
which the Group is exposed are described below. See also note 38(f) for
a summary of financial assets and liabilities by category.

(a)  Currency risk

The Group reports its results in Hong Kong dollars. The Group'’s
primary foreign currency exposure arises from its property
development and investment activities in the PRC. The functional
currency of these operations is Renminbi and most of the financial
instruments are denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s exposure
to currency risk is minimal.

(bh) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest rate
borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s
and the Company’s borrowings at the balance sheet date.

38.

B ISR B AL

MBEREENBREBE

REEAZZBUHEAR  NERR - MXER - F
SRR ERSE SRR - NEBEMNEBRREIZER
FERERTISHNAITRANE - WSS SR EE 75
RENBEINZERERE - AEERE I EEM
AN EREEBERE LIS - AT - EEGEHEH
gF WEIBERABRTAIE  ADTRHIERE
HEAE TR K B B IS E R -

REETEREARBRAERNSHEEERE @ &
HEHE - AEEMEYE NS 2MBERETID
T - BRIRER TR EER A BRIE I 25
F138(f) ©

(a) SMERM

REBNZEELNETZ2S - AEEMEEINE
[ 2K B E R R BB R RIEEE) - %
EXBNDREER/ARE - MAHDERT
ATAANRETE - REBASZRINERR +

DEM -

() F=Em@B

7 5 [ R ) 2 2 e 2 ) ) 3R [ 2 R B
SETZESEEAM - AEEILEEBERDT
ETAAHNEHERNRRER - AT - BIEEL
MEEBEITER - WERVEEEELHE
AMERER -

TRAAFAKEMARRNGEE B ARG
ERNEOER -

Company
N
2008 2007 2008 2007
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate  HK$'000 rate HK$'000 ratt HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BRI TiEn ERFIX TEr  BEAR Thr BRI TH
Fixed rate borrowings: ETHREE :
Loans from minority shareholders ~ LEREEH 6.75% 110413 6.75% 83,984 = = = =
Convertible notes ABRE 6.28% 12,212 6.28% 71,482 6.28% 12,212 6.28% 71,842
182,625 155,466 - 12,212 - 71,482
Variable rate borrowings: SEFREE :
Bank overdrafts RTEX 4.25%-6.50% 6,488 6.50%-7.00% 14811 - - - -
Bank loans RAER 1.20%-8.69% 259,580 4.29%-7.25% 188,627 - - - -
Loan from a minority shareholder ~ — &P SREER = - 6.75% 2222 = = = =
QOther loan HER - - 6.48%-6.57% 9,630 - - - -
266,068 215,290 - -
Total borrowings gt 448,693 370,756 12,212 71,482
seepaman —ssnaeg 111
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s loss
after tax and decrease/increase retained profits by approximately
HK$2,076,000 (2007: decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately HK$1,658,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence for the whole year. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The same
basis of analysis is also performed at 31 December 2007.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts and
other receivables, deposits paid and bank deposits. The Group’s
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties, identifies either individually or by group, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where
available at reasonable cost, external reports on customers and
other counterparties are obtained and used.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
minimal, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality of external credit ratings.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Company due to financial guarantee
contracts provided to its subsidiary, the Company is exposed
to credit risk for maximum amount of HK$94,488,000 (2007:
HK$120,811,000), being the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantee contracts issued.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group does not have any
significant liquidity risk exposure.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term
financial liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT\FT-A=t-ALEE

38. MIBRAMEENBREBEEZ®)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RRER ()

R-ZEZENEFE+_A=+—H REAEE
HhESREFIAE  HHEEMRLEHA T
PR1001E E 2 & 30 5 7K 5 [ Bk i 1% 5
B8 iR B & F 492,076,000 T
—ETEF RS ENMAEERRERT
RARB EFI#41,658,000%7T)

ERAFRESTHRRMNEEHEREE R
A Bt AZFEENESBRTANXER
MEETE o #ANSR A 100EE AEIEELH T
—FEAEEH 2R HRENRN SRR L
&t - BESMTERAR _—ZETLF+ A
=+ —HHBE -

FERR

AREE )RR 2K B BB R E MR
WikIR - BARE RIRITER - AREREE
ZHPTASREERE -

AEE T EEENRARTF REMR 5
THHERIEN - ARNERRRIEHE EEL
EH - WRASE - AEBSBERTAEH
BEPREMRZITHIMNERE -

AEENE R EEMEAN B ER A EAME
BRI -

BATA e AR SR B Bt MR - AN SR (B0 A
A EAAE & BB S P IMEAE B 5 77 AR
HERUNR 5T - BRAKENR 5585
EERFRIMNMEEFRSHRT - ELEH
mBETHEERBRATRIET DEN -

ARRFTEZHNRREBRRRA RE—H
WBARRMMBEREL ST EH
RABRZUBER  ARBMAZEERR
MR =4 5 /594,488,000 L ( — T T4 ¢
120,811,000/ T) » BIFTEE H IS IER A 498
B ARESEE -

REE = E

REBERBE SRR @ AEEEENERFR
SRR EEYEINEEER/FTENNRYE
NERAEBEEBREES REREREMN
PNTE - ARREERS - NEE LB
BEARBELRER

AEBNBRATHERERDESHE - 2
BERAEERFTMRSRERMN R E R
RHSRABENRPESTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E—EENF+_A=F+—HIFE

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

B ISR B AL

38. BIKEKMEENBERBE &

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) d) FBESER )
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial REER  AEBERARRNS A GRS
liabilities as at balance sheet date, based on the contractual WA T (ERAHARITIRAR) ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follow:
Group Company
358 R
Total Total
contractual contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Less than 6to Mter 5 Carrying  undiscounted Less than 6to
amount  cashflow  Ondemand  6months  12months 1to5 years years amount  cashflow  Ondemand  Gmonths  12months 1to5 years
Lt} ~MERZE BHRRR AMERE
REE ReRELE REX OHWAER TR -§EEF  IENL REE RefBME RER OW~ER  T-ER -%E1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET TET TET TET TER TR TiEx TR TER TET TET
Year 2008 k- )82
Accounts payable ERER 55,842 55,842 55,842 S S S = = = = = S S
Deposts receiedand ~ BUESR
other payables EfnEfzE 22,963 22,963 22,963 - - - - 3 3 3 - - -
Borrowings [ 376,481 444,488 6,488 11,141 12,993 309,541 38319 - - - - - -
Convertible notes THRZE 12,212 89,219 - 1875 1875 85,469 - 12,212 89,219 - 1875 1875 85,469
527498 612512 85,293 79,022 14868 395010 38,319 72,243 89,250 3 1875 1,875 85,469
Group Company
158 A7
Total Total
confractual contractual
Carrying - undiscounted Less than [0} Carrying - undiscounted Less than bto
amount  cashflow Ondemand ~ 6months  12months  1to5years amount  cashfow Ondemand  6months  12months  1to5years
LS NERZ RS ~MEAZ
KEfE RenseE BEX JINBER TZER —FFRf BAE RenseE BEX JinEA TZER -FERf
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKFOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
ThL AL AL AL TAL AL FAL AL ThL T TAL AL
Year 2007 “I5tE
Accounts payable JERERET 31,081 31,081 31,081 - - - - - - - - -
Deposits received and BliEER
other payables AR 21,747 21,747 21,747 - - - 31 3l 3l - - -
Borrowings £& 299214 33979 14811 99,643 8463 216882 - - - - - -
Convertible notes MARZE 71482 92,969 - 1875 1875 89,219 71482 92,969 - 1875 1875 89,219
423580 48559 67639 101518 1038 306,101 71513 93,000 31 1875 1875 89,219
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

(e)

()

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZT/\FH-A=+—BILFE

38. MBRREENBREBEEZ @)

Fair value (e) ADArEE
The fair value of convertible notes is determined in accordance ARBEEY AL BESBREARTEER
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash RRRE S BT BRI 5B F R I
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable current market BIBERENMMEE -
transactions as input.
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair AEBIBH ST EUARBEE - AR(E
values. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time EERNSEERREIRESETEEEER Gt -
and are based on relevant market information. These estimates ZEGSBIENE SR IAEAEERAEE
are subjective by nature, involve uncertainties and matters of EALEEEIE - FI Y TAEERET - B%
significant judgement and therefore cannot be determined with (G R AT R st A B A -
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category ) BERG REMEEREEHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities REEABRINAEBLREAELAGERE
as recognised at balance sheet dates may be categorised as AEIDINT - AR T A BN 2%
follows. See notes 3(I) and 3(q) for explanations about how the HE - BE2HMEE() R3(Q)HIEE
classification of financial instruments affects their subsequent
measurement.
Group Company
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET FHET T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: BRI ERAER
Accounts receivable FEURBRE TR 149 514 - -
Deposits paid and other BffEe REM
receivables TEURFRIE 28,013 193,841 - -
Cash and bank balances RS NIBITES 135,138 237,131 2,250 15,880
163,300 431,486 2,250 15,880
Financial liabilities cHAas
Financial liabilities measured at R AT 2/
amortised costs: EHMBE:
Accounts payable FEATRRRR 55,842 31,081 = =
Deposits received and Bl e REA
other payables FESFRIE 22,963 21,747 31 31
Borrowings ==t 376,481 299,274 - -
Convertible notes AR E R 72,212 71,482 72,212 71,482
Financial guarantee contracts MIERIREX - - 1,333 7,179
527,498 423,584 73,576 78,692
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Consolidated Income Statement

Group Financial Summary

SEMBHE

mEWER

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+T—HILLFE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT T T FAETT
Revenue WA 91,715 184,560 207,957 149,089 197,710
(Loss)/Profit from operations & (ER) BA) (43,980) 53,285 107,076 80,199 49,270
Finance costs BhE AR (25,955) (12,975) (5,180) (3,219) =
Share of results of associates NI e 23,831 21,417 19,147 8,018 —
(Loss)/Profit before taxation MERT(EE),&F (46,104) 61,727 121,043 84,998 49,270
Taxation | 83 (16,162) (43,893) (26,086) (16,195)
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(ER) B (46,021) 45,565 77,150 58,912 33,075
Attributable to equity PiN/NET P e
holders of the Company HFAA (33,225) 36,115 73,316 55,934 31,389
Consolidated Balance Sheet HEEEEER
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT T AT FATT
Non-current assets IERBEE 547,357 479,742 332,607 248987 90,726
Current assets RENEE 888,561 849,901 269,515 243,248 115,896
Current liabilities mEAE (184,510) (194,848) (86,180) (122,038) (115,472)
Non-current liabilities EREasE (396,053) (287,612) (46,782) (30,012) (89,251)
Net assets FEE 855,355 847,183 469,160 340,185 1,899
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List of Principal Properties

1. Investment Properties

REYE

Interest Approximate

attributable Total Gross
Properties to the Group Floor Area Type Lease Term

(sq.m.)
L/ES SEAThERE BEREEBEN 5l HH
(EFHK)

The Shopping arcade of Phase | and 86% 11,023 Commercial 70 years from
all shops on Level 1 at Zone A [EE3 19 October 1992 to
of Phase 5, 18 October 2062
Suzhou Garden Villa, B—AAZF+A+TIBEE
98 Shi Shan Road, —ERZF+A+NR -
New District, Suzhou, REETF
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
rh BT #K & gk N T 37 [ 280 L1 BR O]SR
SREILE — AR S K
FERA—IBARAR
Shops on Levels 1, 2 and 3 of 86% 4,440 Commercial 70 years from
Block 11 and the basement, [EES 16 January 1995 to
Suzhou Garden Court, 15 January 2065
1333 Bin He Road, H—ANAE—A+HE
New District, Suzhou, —TRAF—-A+HEAB -
Jiangsu Province, BHETF
the PRC
Fp BT &R & &R N T T [ B R & 133355%
IREAEIIE—E .=
% B 4 R s
Flats 1A and 1B of 86% 600 Residential 70 years from
Jin Hua Tower; Flat 1B x=E 19 October 1992 to
of Jin Sing Tower and Villa J101, 18 October 2062
Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 1, H—hAhZ=ZF+A+hBZE
98 Shi Shan Road, —EXNZFFTAF+NAAB -
New District, Suzhou, BEE+F
Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

FR BT AR A RN T R 2 L BR85S
HERE —HIHERIARIBE :
HREIE1B= J101 52
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Investment Properties (Conta)

REWE#2)

Interest Approximate
attributable Total Gross

to the Group Floor Area
(sq.m.)
BEEEMBEN
(FF7K)

Flats 1A, 6A, 11A, 12A, 12C, 17A and 86% 12,381
18A of Jin Guo Tower, Flats 1A,

2A to 2D, 3Ato 3D, 4A to 4D, 5A to 5D,

6A to 6D, 7A to 7D, 8A to 8D, 9A to 9D,
10Ato 10D, 11A to 11D, 12A to 12D,

15A to 15D, 16A to 16D, 17A to 17D,

18A to 18D, 19A to 19D and 20A to 20D of
Jin Sing Tower,

Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 2,

98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province,

the PRC

P BT &K & k)N T[R40 L BR O]
SREEIDE — HASREIIZ 1A - 6A

11A - 12A + 12C * 17AK18AE -
$REEIA - 2AF2DE  3AE3DE -
4AZEADE - BAESLDE * 6AE6DE
7JAZ7DE - 8AE8DE * OAEIDE -
10AZ10DE * 11AZ11DE
12AZ12DE * 15AZ15DE »

16AZ£16D=E * 17AZ217D%E * 18AZ18DE »
19AZE 19DE K 20AE20DE

Properties

LZES SE LR

Flats 1B, 1D, 1E, 1F, 2A and 2B of 86% 2,806
Jin An Tower, Flats 1B, 1D, 1E and 1F,
2A, 2B, 17B, 17D and 19B to 19D of
Jin Bon Tower,

Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 3,

98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province,

the PRC

Fp BT #R78 #R 1 T T I 280 LU B O8S5R
REBE=HIRLEIB - 1D - 1E -
1F - 2AK2BZE - #83B# 1B+ 1D * 1E
MIFE ~2A 2B 17B -

17D 19BZE19DE

Type

<Yl

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

List of Principal Properties

Lease Term

HE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
B—ANZFTAT+ABEZE
ZERZF+ATNR
REETE

70 years from

19 October 1991 to

18 October 2061
B—hAN—F+A+IBE
—ERA—FTA+NR
AEETF
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List of Principal Properties

1. Investment Properties (Conta)

REWME#)
Interest Approximate
attributable Total Gross
Properties to the Group Floor Area Type Lease Term
(sq.m.)
L/ES SEAThER BEEmMBEN W] bz
(FF3K)
Beijing Landmark Towers, 30.05%* 15,504 Hotel The land use rights of the
8 East 3rd Ring North Road, A property have been vested in
Chaoyang District, Beijing Landmark Towers Co.,
Beijing, 50,768 Office Ltd. by allocation for a term from
the PRC WAE 30 January 1986 to 7 October
PRI R EARS R R =R ILBE 85 2020
EREETRE 22,663 Shop R T R B AR A B
Bk FRAEBETIEREEIRERR
nal - FHE-NANRF—H
15,504 Service =t+HERE-_E-_FTF+A+H
Apartment [
RS
25,705 Basements
e
o Group under “Interests in associates” in note 16 to the financial statement * AR MR 160 B N Bl MM | —&D o
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Properties held under development

EELIEIES

List of Principal Properties

Approximate

Approximate Total Gross Estimated
Interest attributable  Total Site Area Floor Area Date of
Properties to the Group (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Type Completion Progress
L/ES SBEAThER i BEELN HEEEEY 5l fEEHR T A ERMRR
(EFK) (FFHXK)
Wuzhong Garden Court  54% 41,579 61,484 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at south side of November 2007
Nanxijiang Road
and east side of Residential Phase Il Completed
Mingxi Road, November 2008
Wuzhong District,
Suzhou, Commercial Phase IlI Under
Jiangsu Province, 2009 construction
the PRC
R = £—H BT
AR BT R E &N T “TTEF TR
R [ RO A &
B S R f T= £_H B%T
—EENF+—H
[EES £=H feeatey
ZETNF
Taihu Garden Court 55% 131,445 92,037 Residential Phase | Under
situated at 2009 construction
Ling Tang Road North,
West of Mu Guang Canal, Phase Il Planning in
Guangfu Town, 2010-2011 progress
Wuzhong District,
Suzhou, (e £—H pgEp
Jiangsu Province, “TTNF
the PRC
b= F-H el
LA R BT B4 #R N T —T-TF=Z
R ENRHE T
ZEYEERIL A
NI A fEl
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List of Principal Properties

2. Properties held under development (Cont'a)

BRPYEE)
Approximate
Approximate Total Gross Estimated
Interest attributable  Total Site Area Floor Area Date of
Properties to the Group (sg.m.) (sq.m.) Type Completion Progress
/S SBAThES i BEELN MEREEN 5l fHErR T HE ERMRR
(EFK) (FFEXK)
Lakeside Garden Court  94% 86,236 155,225 Residential/ 2010-2012 Planning in
situated at Commercial progress
East shore of F®/HE —T-TEE E Fl
Long Zhong Lake in —E——fF
Shengze Town,
Wujiang City,
Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
SRER 0
IR BT AR
BRI hEEE
BRHBER Al
Office tower and 100% 14,592 58,368 Commercial/ 2012 Planning in
retail arcade Office progress
to be situated at CEY4 —E——F e Fl
Ta Yun Road West, HAE

Yue Lai Xi East,

Economic Development Zone,
Wuzhong District,
Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province,

the PRC
WAEANERTERS
FEHAL A R BT R A 2R T
RARACERE R

booE iy

MR A
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